

# **PLANNING PROPOSAL**

# KU-RING-GAI LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN (REZONING AND RECLASSIFICATION OF CERTAIN COUNCIL OWNED LAND) 2014

# BEING AN AMENDMENT TO KU-RING-GAI PLANNING SCHEME ORDINANCE 1971 OR DRAFT KU-RING-GAI LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2013

### PROPOSAL TO RECLASSIFY FROM COMMUNITY LAND TO OPERATIONAL LAND AND REZONE: 27 GARRICK ROAD, ST IVES PART 56-58 KOOLA AVE, EAST KILLARA 97 BABBAGE ROAD, ROSEVILLE CHASE 136A MORRIS AVENUE/JUNCTION LANE, WAHROONGA

May 2014

Prepared by Ku-ring-gai Council and BBC Consulting Planners

# **Table of Contents**

Table of Contents	1
Executive Summary	3
Part One – Objectives	3
Project Overview	3
Land to which the Planning Proposal Applies	5
27 Garrick Road St Ives	5
Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara	6
97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase	7
136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane Wahroonga	8
Existing Planning Controls	9
Land Classification	9
Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (KPSO)	9
Current Development Standards relating to the Land under the KPSO	9
Objectives of the Proposed Local Environmental Plan	. 10
Part 2 – Explanation of Provisions	. 10
Proposed Planning Controls	. 10
Zoning Overview – Current, Exhibited and Proposed	. 11
Planning Controls Overview – Proposed Planning Controls	. 12
Status of Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013	. 12
Proposed Amendments to Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013	. 13
Proposed Amendments to the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance	. 13
Part 3 – Justification	. 14
Section A - Need for the Planning Proposal	. 14
Section B – Relationship to Strategic Planning Framework	. 17
Section C – Environmental, Social and Economic Impact	. 33
Section D – State and Commonwealth Interests	. 34
Part 4 Mapping	. 35
Land the Subject of the Planning Proposal	. 35
Current Land Use Zones under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance	. 39
Current Development Standards relating to the Land under the KPSO	. 43
Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – Proposed Deferred Areas	. 44
Draft Proposed Land Use Zoning under KLEP 2013 as adopted – to be superseded by th Planning Proposal	
Proposed zoning under this Planning Proposal under DKLEP 2013	. 47
Proposed zoning and development standards under this Planning Proposal under KPSO the site in the deferred area	
Proposed development standards for this Planning Proposal – DKLEP 2013	. 50
Aerial Photographs	. 55

Part 5 – Community Consultation	59
Proposed Community Consultation Strategy	59
Reclassification of Public Land	59
Is the planning proposal the result of any strategic study or report?	59
Is the planning proposal consistent with the local council's community plan, or other local strategic plan?	60
If the provisions of the planning proposal include the extinguishment of any interests in the land, an explanation of the reasons why the interests are proposed to be extinguished:	
The concurrence of the landowner, where the land is not owned by the relevant planning authority 60	
Part 6 Project Timeline	61
Requirements of LEP Practice Note PN 09-003:	87

## **Executive Summary**

The Planning Proposal seeks to amend the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (KPSO) to rezone and reclassify from community land to operational land the following lands:

- 27 Garrick Road, St Ives;
- Part 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara;
- 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase; and
- 136 A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga.

**Note:** in the event that the Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 is made, then this proposed Planning Proposal would become an amendment to the *Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013*. The Planning Proposal has been prepared with dual provisions accordingly.

The outcome of the reclassification and rezoning would be to create the capacity for Ku-ring-gai Council to better manage, to lease or to divest these assets at some point in the future and subject to a separate Council resolution for the purposes of supporting Council's asset renewal strategies.

## Part One – Objectives

### **Project Overview**

This Planning Proposal contains an explanation of the intended effect and justification for a proposed amendment to the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance 1971 (KPSO). The Planning Proposal has been prepared in accordance with section 55 of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* (EP&A Act) and the relevant Department of Planning Guidelines including *A 'Guide to Preparing Local Environmental Plans'* and '*A Guide to Preparing Planning Proposals*' (the guide).

The Planning Proposal seeks an amendment to the KPSO to achieve the reclassification from Community land to Operational land and rezoning, of the following lands:

- 27 Garrick Road, St Ives;
- Part 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara;
- 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase; and
- 136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga.

**Note:** in the event that the Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 is made, then this proposed Planning Proposal would change to being an amendment to the Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013.

The sites to which the Planning Proposal relates are shown in Land to which the Planning **Proposal Relates** and more detailed maps are included under **Part 4 – Mapping**.

At the Ordinary meeting of Council on 30 April 2013, a report was tabled to Council recommending that Council prepare a Planning Proposal to reclassify a number of sites from Community land to Operational land. This report is provided in **Appendix 1** and the resolution in **Appendix 2**.

BBC Consulting Planners were engaged by Ku-ring-gai Council to prepare Planning Proposals in relation to the above resolution. Following feedback from the Department of Planning and Infrastructure, additional commentary and clarification has been included.

As detailed in the resolution above, there are a number of properties that will be the subjects of Planning Proposals. The properties have been grouped for the purpose of preparing these planning proposals.

In accordance with Section 55 of the EP&A Act, this Planning Proposal seeks to explain the intended effect of the proposed instrument and sets out the justification for making the proposed instrument. It addresses matters that are intended to be included in the Local Environmental Plan.

Section 45 of the Local Government Act, 1993 prevents Council from selling, exchanging or otherwise disposing of community land. Therefore it is proposed to reclassify the sites from community land to operational land in accordance with Section 27 of the Act.

# Definitions from Practice Note PN09-003 Classification and reclassification of public land through a local environmental plan

'Public land' is any land (including a public reserve) vested in, or under the control of, council. Exceptions include roads, land to which the *Crown Lands Act 1989* applies, a common, or land to which the *Trustees of Schools of Arts Enabling Act 1902* applies.

'Community' land is generally open to the public, for example, parks, reserves or sports rounds.

'Operational' land may be used for other purposes, for example, as works depots or garages, or held by council as a temporary asset.

'Classification' of public land refers to the process when this land is first acquired and first classified as either 'operational' land or 'community' land.

'Reclassification' of public land refers to the process of changing the classification of 'operational' land to 'community' land or from 'community' land to 'operational' land.

#### What is Community Classified Land?

Community Classified Land is a land classification that prohibits Council to sell, exchange or grant an interest to another party other than in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993.

#### What is Operational Classified Land?

Operational Classified Land is a land classification that permits Council to sell, exchange or grant an interest to another party other than in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993.

### Land to which the Planning Proposal Applies

This planning proposal relates to four sites. The location and base descriptions appear below. Additional maps including zoning and development controls and more detailed aerial photographs appear in **Part 4 Mapping**.







The site comprises Lot 43 in DP 30335 and has an area of 2,016 square metres. The site has a frontage of approximately 50 metres to Garrick Road, St Ives. The Deposited Plan registered in 1960 indicates the site as public garden and recreation space.

Council records indicate that the site is affected by a covenant and a caveat by the Registrar General forbidding the registration of any dealing affecting the land not in accordance with the terms of a Declaration of Trust dated 24 August 1960.

The site currently contains a passive park of mown lawn and tall trees and garden with no significant improvements. To the north the site has a boundary with two residential properties, to the east a residential property at 25 Garrick Road, to the West a residential dwelling and part boundary to Council Owned Child Care Centre. A stormwater drainage pipe crosses the south west corner of the site.

Ku-ring-gai Council acquired the site in 1960 for use as a public garden and recreation space.

A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment has been undertaken by C.M. Jewell & Associates Pty Ltd which found there is a low risk of contamination of site soils arising from previous land uses and that no further investigation of the site is recommended.



Photograph: View from 27 Garrick Road, St Ives

#### Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara



The site comprises Lot 3 in DP 588630 and has an area of 4,384 square metres. The site is basically L-shaped and has frontages to Warrington Avenue, Koola Avenue, Reading Lane and Reading Avenue.

The site comprises open space of mown lawn and mature trees and garden and a picnic table and park bench and approximately 14 parking spaces. The site is adjacent to the East Killara Shopping Centre.

Currently zoned 3(a) Business Retail, the intention is to reclassify the site from community land to operational land to facilitate the subdivision of the site to create one allotment of land similar in size to adjoining lots fronting Koola Avenue containing the parking area of 1618m<sup>2</sup>. The remainder of the site to the north west of the shopping centre currently zoned as 6(a) Recreation Existing will then be reclassified back as community land with the intention of retaining is as a park. Ku-ring-gai Council acquired the site in 1960 for use as a public pathway.

A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment has been undertaken by C.M. Jewell & Associates Pty Ltd which found there is a low risk of contamination of site soils arising from previous land uses and that no further investigation of the site is recommended.



Photograph: View from Koola Avenue

#### 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase



The site comprises Lot 47 in DP 13444 and has an area of 835 square metres. The site is situated on the corner of, with frontages to, Babbage Road and Allard Avenue in Roseville. The site is known as 'Allard Corner' and comprises vacant land.

Records indicate that the site has been in the ownership of Ku-ring-gai Council since 1929. The site has always been vacant and there is no history of any development approvals being granted by the Council.

A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment has been undertaken by C.M. Jewell & Associates Pty Ltd which found there is a low risk of contamination of site soils arising from previous land uses and that no further investigation of the site is recommended.

This report also indicated that a concrete encased sewer pipe crosses the site in a northwest to south-east direction across the far western portion of the site.



Photograph: View of 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase

#### 136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane Wahroonga





The site comprises Lot 3 in DP 547626 and Lot A in DP 410082 and has an area of 793 square metres. The site has a frontage to Junction Lane.

The site is made up of two residual lots of land that adjoin Morris Avenue and Junction Lane. The site is in an area characterised by residential development.

Lot 3 in DP 547626 is affected by a right of way terminating on an agreed event affecting that part shown 6 wide in DP 452643 (Dealing R879277). The driveway (access) that exists on the land can be managed at a later stage, such as when development is proposed on the land.

Records indicate that the site has been in the ownership of Ku-ring-gai Council since 1959.

A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment has been undertaken by C.M. Jewell & Associates Pty Ltd which found there is a low risk of contamination of site soils arising from previous land uses and that no further investigation of the site is recommended.

This report also indicated that a number of services pass through the site including:

- Sewer pipes across the northern part of the site;
- Stormwater pipes;
- A gas main; and
- Electrical services.



Photograph: View from mid-point looking towards Morris Avenue

## **Existing Planning Controls**

#### Land Classification

We are advised that the sites detailed above that comprise public land are classified as Community land under the Local Government Act, 1993. Section 45 of the Local Government Act, 1993 prevents Council from selling, exchanging or otherwise disposing of Community classified land. Therefore it is proposed to reclassify the sites from Community Land to Operational land in accordance with Section 27 of the Act.

There is no information available from Council records that would indicate that the sites were dedicated in accordance with a condition imposed under S94 of the EP&A Act.

#### Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (KPSO)

	27 Garrick Road, St Ives	Part 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara	97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase	136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane, Wahroonga
Zoning	Recreation Existing 6(a)	Part Bus 3(a)-(A3) & Recreation Existing 6(a)	Recreation Existing 6(a)	Uncoloured (part of the roadway)
Heritage Listing	No	No	No	No
Bushfire Prone Land	No	Yes	Yes	No
Riparian Land	Yes (Category 3a)	No	Yes (Category 1)	Yes (Category 3a)
Biodiversity	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

The table below details the application of the KPSO to the subject sites:

#### Current Development Standards relating to the Land under the KPSO

Development Standards currently applying to 27 Garrick Road St Ives under the Ku-ringgai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

27 Garrick Street St Ives is currently zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

# Development Standards currently applying to Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

Part of 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara is zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards. There is no proposed change to the zoning of that part of the site that is zoned for Public Recreation.

The remainder of the site the subject of this Planning Proposal, is zoned 3(a)-(A3) Business Retail. The KPSO incorporates development standards within the written instrument. Part IV Business Centre Provisions includes Clause 30B(2) includes a table which indicates that the floor space ratio applicable to the A3 Floor Space Zone indicated as 3(a)-(A3) is 0.75:1.

# Development Standards currently applying to 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase is currently zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

# Development Standards currently applying to 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

The area known as 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga is effectively a street closure of Morris Lane where it meets Junction Lane. At present it has the same zoning as the roads (uncoloured) and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

### **Objectives of the Proposed Local Environmental Plan**

This section of the Planning Proposal sets out the objectives or intended outcomes of the Planning Proposal.

Council purchased the former "SUN" building at 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon for the purposes of a new administration building. The acquisition gives Council a significant strategic landholding on the west side of Gordon with frontage to Pacific Highway, McIntyre Street and Dumaresq Street. This precinct will be master planned to provide a civic hub for community facilities, open space and Council's civic and administrative functions. However, this master planning will only commence after the reclassification of 818 Pacific Highway has been finalised. The acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon was only made on the basis that it would be funded by the rationalisation of under-utilised Council assets. This principal was the basis of the Capital Expenditure Review prepared and submitted to the Division of Local Government in support of the acquisition.

The reclassification of the sites to Operational land will provide Council with the flexibility required to respond to new development opportunities and provide a range of other facilities and services.

The coordinated and orderly use of land would be best facilitated by classifying the sites as Operational land to enable Council to respond to new opportunities to implement planning strategies contained in the Ku-ring-gai LEP Local Centres (2012) and Ku-ring-gai DCP Local Centres (2013).

## **Part 2 – Explanation of Provisions**

This section sets out the means through which the objectives described in Part 1 will be achieved by means of amending either the KPSO or, if gazetted prior to the finalisation of this Planning Proposal, by amending Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013, in respect of 27 Garrick Road St Ives, 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase and 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga. In respect of Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara, the land in the vicinity of this site is part of an area deferred from Draft Ku-ring-gai LEP 2013. Accordingly, in respect of this one site only, it is the KPSO that will be amended irrespective of the gazettal or otherwise of DKLEP2013.

### **Proposed Planning Controls**

This Planning Proposal seeks to amend the classification of the subject sites from 'community' to 'operational' land and to rezone the sites for low density residential use. The sites are, at the time of drafting this Planning Proposal, subject to the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance.

The land in Ku-ring-gai outside of the local town centres are also affected by Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 which is currently awaiting gazettal. This matter is further complicated in a number of respects:

- The area around Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara was exhibited under DKLEP2013 showing E3 Environmental Management adjoining the site and R2 Low Density Residential opposite the site however, the area was deferred by resolution at the OMC of 26 November 2013 which considered the adoption of Draft KLEP2013, and is expected to remain subject to the KPSO after the gazettal of this LEP.
- Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara is one large allotment. It cannot be subdivided while it remains community classified. Only that part of the land identified in the Maps in Part 4 Mapping is proposed to be rezoned from Business 3(a)-(A3) to Residential 2(b). Following subdivision, it is intended that the part of the land that remains zoned for public recreation will be reclassified back to community land.
- The area surrounding 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase was exhibited as E4 Environmental Living and this area is not a deferred area. However, the subject site remains subject to the earlier resolution of the OMC of 30 April 2013 to rezone to R2 Low Density Residential. This is not overridden by the later resolution of 26 November 2013 for the area surrounding the site but not the site itself. Accordingly the site is shown as an R2 Low Density Residential zone in accordance with the current Council resolution for that site and it is formally noted that the surrounding sites are proposed to be zoned E4 Environmental Living.

Relevant maps are included in Part 4 – Mapping.

#### Zoning Overview – Current, Exhibited and Proposed

The next table sets out the zoning status under the current KPSO and DKLEP 2013 and this Planning Proposal:

Site	KPSO (Existing)	KPSO (Proposed by this PP)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Exhibited)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Adopted)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Proposed by this PP as per OMC resolution of 30/04/2013)
27 Garrick Road St Ives	Recreation Existing 6(a)	Residential 2(a)	RE1 – Public Recreation with R2 Low Density Residential adjoining	RE1 – Public Recreation	R2 Low Density Residential
Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara	3(a) - (A3) Business – Retail Services. <b>Note</b> : the residual of the lot is Recreation Existing 6(a)	Part Residential 2(b). <b>Note</b> : the residual of the lot remains zoned Recreation Existing 6(a)	B1 Neighbourhood Centre and RE1 – Public Recreation The exhibited KLEP also showed land proposed to be zoned E3 Environmental Management adjoining the subject site and R2 Low Density Residential on the opposite side of Koola Avenue.	Deferred	The resolution of the OMC of 30/04/2013 was to rezone the subject land R2 Low Density Residential. However, as the site was deferred from the KLEP2013, the nearest equivalent zone under the KPSO must be proposed by this PP. Please refer to the KPSO zoning proposed by this PP in the second column of this table.
97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase	Recreation Existing 6(a)	Residential 2(a)	RE1 – Public Recreation with E4 Environmental Living adjoining	RE1 - Public Recreation	R2 Low Density Residential

Site	KPSO (Existing)	KPSO (Proposed by this PP)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Exhibited)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Adopted)	Draft KLEP 2013 (Proposed by this PP as per OMC resolution of 30/04/2013)
136A Morris Avenue Wahroonga	Unzoned (the site shows no colour on the current zoning map)	Residential 2(a)	RE1 – Public Recreation with R2 Low Density Residential adjoining	RE1 - Public Recreation	R2 Low Density Residential

#### Planning Controls Overview – Proposed Planning Controls

The next table sets out the height, floor space ratio and minimum lot sizes that would apply under DKLEP 2013 and this Planning Proposal for the three sites affected by draft KLEP 2013:

Site	Draft KLEP 2013 (Proposed by this PP as per OMC resolution of 30/04/2013)	Floor space ratio proposed under this Planning Proposal	Height of Buildings proposed under this Planning Proposal	Minimum Lot Size proposed under this Planning Proposal
27 Garrick Road St Ives	R2 Low Density Residential	0.3:1 (A3)	9.5m (J2)	930m <sup>2</sup> (T)
97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase	R2 Low Density Residential	0.3:1 (A3)	9.5m (J2)	790m <sup>2</sup> (Q)
136A Morris Avenue Wahroonga	R2 Low Density Residential	0.3:1 (A3)	9.5m (J2)	930m <sup>2</sup> (T)

In the case of 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase, the proposed floor space ratio and minimum lot sizes reflect the development standards of the nearby R2 zone which has a smaller minimum lot size than the northern R2 zones. The adjoining E4 zone under the DKLEP2013 permits a floor space ratio of 0.2:1 (A1) and a minimum lot size of 1,500m<sup>2</sup> (U2). In this context it is noted that the site is an existing allotment with an area of 835m<sup>2</sup> and is located on a corner with two street frontages. The height of buildings limit is the same for both R2 and E4 zones.

Maps for each of these proposed planning controls are included in Part 4 – Mapping.

The Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance does not illustrate floor space ratio, height of buildings and minimum lot sizes in these planning controls in map format. The proposed planning controls for that part of 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara that is proposed to change from 3(a)-(A2) to 2(b) would be as follows: Minimum Lot Size: 836m<sup>2</sup>. Under the KPSO, floor space ratio and height of buildings are matters covered by the Development Control Plan.

#### Status of Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013

The Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 (DKLEP2013) has been publically exhibited, reported to Council and lodged with the Department of Planning and Infrastructure for final drafting and gazettal. It is understood that the area around 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara will remain deferred in accordance with the Council resolution upon gazettal.

The table above details the draft zoning controls under the current DKLEP2013 that has been referred back to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure following the resolution of the OMC on 28 November 2013 as relevant to this proposal (in the fourth column). None of the properties are subject to a draft Heritage Listing.

The maps relating to DKLEP identify parts of the sites as being areas of biodiversity significance or riparian land. These are the same as maps as provided in the KLEP218.

#### Proposed Amendments to Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013

In the event that DKLEP 2013 is gazetted prior to this planning proposal being resolved to the point of gazettal, this planning proposal would relate to the proposed amendment of the DKLEP 2013 and would result in the following amendments to the DKLEP 2013 in respect of three of the four sites as follows:

- the land known as 27 Garrick Road, St Ives is to be rezoned from RE1 Public Recreation to R2 Low Density Residential in accordance with the Council Resolution of 30 April 2013;
- the land known as 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase is to be rezoned from RE1 Public Recreation to R2 Low Density Residential in accordance with the Council Resolution of 30 April 2013;
- the land known as 136A Morris Avenue, Wahroonga is to be rezoned from RE1 Public Recreation to R2 Low Density Residential in accordance with the Council Resolution of 30 April 2013.

It should be noted that:

 the land known as Part 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara has been deferred as per the council resolution dated 26 November 2013 and will remain subject to the KPSO for the purposes of this Planning Proposal;

Amendment of Schedule 4 Classification and reclassification of public land by inserting in Part 2 of that Schedule:

Under Column 1 Locality:	Under Column 2 Description:	Under Column 3: Any trust etc not discharged:
Garrick Road, St Ives	Lot 43 in DP 30335	Nil
Babbage Road, Roseville	Lot 47 in DP 13444	Nil
Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga	Lot 3 in DP 547626 and Lot A in DP 410082	Nil

#### Proposed Amendments to the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance

The Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance remains the current EPI affecting the subject properties at the time of submission of this Planning Proposal.

This planning proposal would result in amendment of KPSO Amendment Summary by inserting under Item G – *The Amendment of Schedules*:

• The amendment to Schedule 10 by inserting the matter relating to 27 Garrick Road, St Ives, Part 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara, 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase and 136 A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga.

Amendment of Schedule 10 *Classification and reclassification of public land* by inserting in Part 2 of that Schedule:

Under Column 1 Locality:	Under Column 2 Description:	Under Column 3 Any trust etc not discharged:
Garrick Road St Ives	Lot 43 in DP 30335	Nil
Koola Avenue East Killara	Lot 2 in DP 588630	Nil
Babbage Road Roseville	Lot 47 in DP 13444	Nil
Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga	Lot 3 in DP 547626 and Lot A in DP 410082	Nil

It should be noted that, in respect of Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara, the KPSO will remain the current applicable EPI for that site as the area has been deferred under DKLEP 2013.

Ku-ring-gai Council supports the Planning Proposal for the reclassification of the sites from Community Land to Operational Land.

The Planning Proposal will allow Council to sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of, or deal with the sites. Upon reclassification to Operational land the sites will be available for divestment (if required and as outlined in the OMC report of 30 April 2013) and this would be conducted in line with the procedures outlined in Council's *Acquisition and Divestment of Land Policy, 2009* and relevant provisions of the *Local Government Act 1993*. The future divestment of the sites would be the subject of a separate report to Council following reclassification.

The planning proposal, when finalised, will discharge any trusts, estates, interests, dedications, conditions or restrictions and covenants affecting the land or any part of the land. Details of the sites proposed for reclassification and the proposed planning controls are set out in sections 1.1 and 1.3.

## Part 3 – Justification

This section sets out the reasons for the proposed outcomes and development standards in the Planning Proposal.

The following questions are set out in the Department of Planning's *A Guide to Preparing Planning Proposals* and address the need for the planning proposal, its strategic planning context, the environmental, social and economic impacts and the implications for State and Commonwealth government agencies.

### Section A - Need for the Planning Proposal

The sites are not used to capacity and their current use is not considered the highest or best use of the sites.

If the sites retain Community land classifications they would limit the ability of Council to deal with the land and achieve its strategic objectives of the purchase and development of Council buildings at 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon and related properties.

#### Q1. Is the planning proposal a result of any strategic study or report?

Yes. Council resolved, at the Ordinary Meeting held on 30 April 2013, to prepare a Planning Proposal to reclassify the under-utilised Council assets from Community land to Operational land. The sale of the under-utilised land will fund the purchase and development of

828 Pacific Highway, Gordon and adjoining land for a civic hub for community facilities, open space and Council's civic and administrative functions.

Additionally, *Draft Ku-ring-gai Community Facilities Strategy 2014* is an update of *Ku-ring-gai Community Facilities Strategy 2009* and also builds on the findings of the *Ku-ring-gai Council Library Facilities Study 2004*, recent findings of the *Lindfield Community Facilities Study 2014* as well as recent Council decisions and opportunities that have arisen relating to community facilities and land assets.

The purpose of the strategy is to consolidate an LGA wide strategy to provide an overarching framework to guide Council through all future policy and planning decisions relating to its provision of community facilities. The strategy provides high-level guidance on facility provision across the LGA and outlines a blueprint for future facility provision.

Ku-ring-gai Council are currently instigating the creation of a civic/cultural precinct in Gordon local centre; the new facility has the potential to integrate and include:

- Council Administration
- Council Chambers
- Civic and Cultural Centre including:
  - A generous, open foyer space with Council customer service point and
  - o space for gathering and temporary displays
  - o Large hall/auditorium
  - Gallery and exhibition space for permanent and temporary exhibitions
  - o Larger meeting/activity spaces
  - o Studios and workshop space
  - Potential inclusion of retail space (e.g. a café)
  - Connection to an outdoor public space (e.g. town plaza)
- Central Library (possibly)

The reclassification of the four properties is both directly and indirectly linked to the provision of these new community facilities in Gordon. As previously noted the sale of the land would help to fund the purchase of 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon which allows Council administration offices to move from the existing building at 818 Pacific Highway. This move frees up a large site at the rear of the heritage listed former chambers building that would be suitable for the provision of a new cultural centre. An indicative layout for the Gordon Civic Hub is illustrated below.



#### Indicative layout of potential Gordon Civic Hub

The *Ku-ring-gai Community Facilities Strategy 2014* provides a framework for the future provision of community facilities. It aims to assist Council to take an integrated, strategic approach to the planning and provision of community facilities and to deliver a network of facilities that collectively meet the needs of the Ku-ring-gai community into the future. This strategy provides Council with a blueprint for the future provision of community facilities across the Ku-ring-gai LGA. It will provide a long term and strategic direction that considers the needs of the whole LGA over the next 20 years.

The strategy includes analysis of existing facility provision, identification of gaps, and an analysis of population growth and change to determine future needs and community facility requirements. The study also involved consideration of key trends in community facility provision, development of guiding principles and a proposed hierarchy and standards for community facilities. These principles, hierarchy and standards were then applied to the Ku-ring-gai LGA context to formulate a strategy for community facility provision in the Ku-ring-gai LGA.

The *Ku-ring-gai Community Facilities Strategy 2014* supports Council's proposal for a civic / cultural hub in Gordon. It finds that based on the existing Ku-ring-gai population, which is 109,146 people (and without taking into account future population growth), the data suggests there is a current and immediate need for a sub-regional level cultural facility to serve the LGA.

The study further notes:

"As the primary local centre in the LGA, Gordon is the most suitable location for this regional level facility. It offers opportunities for the co-location with other facilities in the local centre".

"A regional level cultural facility presents a more sustainable approach, with resources focused on the provision of a high quality, activated, purpose-built and managed facility with a range of offerings. Future planning works should consider the potential rationalisation of some facilities with suitable uses relocated to the proposed regional cultural facility in Gordon".

The strategy describes the potential character of the new civic hub as a place that:

- offers civic engagement, community pride and celebration
- is welcoming, inviting, accessible a people place not bureaucratic
- provides good integration with outdoor/public/civic space
- is for community gathering, events, celebrations, performance
- is active, vibrant atmosphere

In summary, if the site were available for sale and redevelopment, which is not now possible under community land classification, this would provide opportunity for a higher order of benefits for the Ku-ring-gai community as a whole in the form of a site/location for a new cultural facility located in Gordon.

# Q2. Is the planning proposal the best means of achieving the objectives or intended outcomes, or is there a better way?

The sites are currently classified as Community land and therefore Council is not able to develop, sell, exchange or dispose of Community land under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993. Amending the KPSO (or DKLEP 2013 as applicable if it is gazetted beforehand) would be the only means of achieving the objectives of the Planning Proposal. A planning proposal for the site is therefore considered appropriate.

### **Section B – Relationship to Strategic Planning Framework**

# Q3. Is the planning proposal consistent with the objectives and actions contained within the applicable regional or sub-regional strategy (including the Sydney Metropolitan Strategy and exhibited draft strategies)?

Yes. The reclassification of the properties that are the subject of this planning proposal are part of a broader strategy to support the population and dwelling growth and demographic change in the Ku-ring-gai Local Government Area by the provision of civic, community and open space facilities in accessible locations. This strategy can only be achieved by strategic asset renewal and consolidation combined with the use of development contributions necessarily supplemented by the co-contributions required to comply with the rules of apportionment.

In December 2010 the NSW Government released the Metropolitan Plan for Sydney 2036. This Plan supersedes the 2005 Metropolitan Strategy – City of Cities: A Plan for Sydney's Future. Actions contained in the Plan focus on aligning subregional planning with the Metropolitan Plan and concentrating development around centres. The Metropolitan Plan contains a hierarchy for strategic and local centres.

The Draft Metropolitan Strategy for Sydney to 2031 was publically exhibited between 19 March 2013 and 26 June 2013. The draft strategy focuses on housing and jobs growth in places across the city. It also aims to give people a choice of housing that is more affordable and enable them to work closer to where they live.

The draft strategy also looks to provide a city with high levels of accessibility and connectivity. It seeks to achieve this by ensuring transport integrates with land use by connecting centres of activity, matching patterns of development to transport capacity and providing a finer-grain network of connections. The Planning Proposal, in conjunction with the zonings and controls of the KLEP 2012 will allow the sites, to be developed for business development or residential in areas that have existing access to public transport.

The relevant subregional strategy is the exhibited Draft Metropolitan Strategy for Sydney to 2031 (March 2013) and the North subregion thereunder.

The consistency of this Planning Proposal with the objectives and action contained in the Metropolitan Plan for Sydney 2026 are outlined in more detail below:

#### Balanced growth

Balanced growth includes the capacity to grow business, invest in infrastructure and revitalise our neighbourhoods including:-

- focussing urban renewal in areas that are close to transport hubs and corridors;
- strengthen and grow Sydney's many local, town and city centres.

The reclassification and divestment of these properties is part of an integrated funding mechanism for the provision of new community facilities within a civic hub to support the current and future growth that is underway in Ku-ring-gai. The acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway Gordon is integral to this strategy and is to be fully-funded by the reuse, leverage or divestment of selected properties.

#### A liveable city

The chapter entitled 'a liveable city' sets out a vision to ensure Sydney is one of the most liveable cities in the world by:-

• creating socially inclusive places that encourage people to come together formally and informally and stimulate cultural and recreational activities;

 building confidence in centres all over Sydney to attract investment, through good design and urban renewal.

This planning proposal will assist in facilitating essential aspects of the delivery of a civic, cultural and community hub at Gordon. It may, additionally, directly facilitate additional commercial and residential development.

#### Productivity and prosperity

Productivity and prosperity supports:-

• Zoning land to enable productive uses in strategic locations.

As previously stated, Gordon is the major accessible commercial centre in Ku-ring-gai. Consolidation of the civic and cultural facilities on Council's collective land holdings in Gordon provides accessible facilities for all residents and supports continued business growth in this centre. The reclassification of these four properties will economically support this objective.

#### Healthy and resilient environment

This chapter supports environmental sustainability by encouraging:

- the efficient use of energy, water and resources;
- building resistance to natural hazards (recurring, costly, significant);
- minimising the impacts of climate change.

The current office space for Ku-ring-gai Council consists of 1960s and 1980s additions to the rear of a 1928 heritage listed building. These are at the end of their economic life and are in poor condition. They are environmentally inefficient, which makes them costly to run and impractical and uneconomic to retro-fit.

Over the past four years, Ku-ring-gai Council Chambers at 818 Pacific Highway Gordon has been extensively flooded as a result of heavy rain resulting in significant internal damage. Such extreme events are expected to become more frequent.

The purchase of 828 Pacific Highway Gordon enables fit-out to allow a Green Star rating substantially reducing on-going costs and enabling Ku-ring-gai to lead by example for other development in the area. Redevelopment of the rear of 818 Pacific Highway facilitates the delivery of a civic and cultural hub for the community.

The delivery of a civic and cultural hub in Ku-ring-gai with environmentally sustainable buildings will reduce the environmental footprint of Council's civic and cultural activities and reduce dayto-day maintenance and running costs. The reclassification and potential divestment of the four identified properties is an essential component of achieving this objective.

#### Accessibility and connectivity

This chapter supports the centralisation of civic and cultural facilities in an accessible location such as Gordon. There is no inconsistency with this aspect of the Metro Strategy.

#### Subregions – North

Ku-ring-gai is in the North Subregion. Gordon is located near the junction of the Pacific Highway and Lane Cove Road / Mona Vale Road which is part of the global economic corridor from Chatswood to Macquarie (Ryde). It is also served by the Northern Rail corridor. This accessible commercial centre is the appropriate place to co-locate civic, and district/LGA level cultural and community facilities.

#### Strategic Merit

As previously noted, the reclassification of the subject properties is a vital component part of a much broader strategy to provide a civic, cultural and community hub at Gordon.

#### Site Specific Merit

27 Garrick Road St Ives is small mown grass park of approximately three typical allotments in width located at the end of a cul-de-sac surrounded by low density residential houses and has a limited catchment within walking distance. It is some distance from the main St Ives Centre where the redevelopment of medium-high density housing is taking place and relatively inaccessible by walking other than by its immediate neighbours due to the street configuration.

56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara is a consolidated lot including a park, a small area of carparking separate to the main car parking for the retail area and a small pocket park severed from the main park behind the shops. The planning proposal seeks to reclassify the site in order to permit subdivision to separate the main part of the park from residual area. The main part of the park is to retain its existing recreation zoning (and the maps in Part 4 clearly show that only a small proportion of the site is affected by the rezoning component of this Planning Proposal). Only the residual area, being that part of the currently zoned for business purposes, is to be zoned for low density residential.

97 Babbage Road Roseville is a single corner allotment that is elevated above the roadway. It does not visually read as a park and, due to its topography, poor access and vegetation, is unlikely to achieve this. It is located in the immediate vicinity of Echo Point Park which adjoins Middle Harbour.

136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane Wahroonga is effectively a street closure of Morris Avenue which is the width of a single typical housing allotment. It reads as a pathway/driveway/accessway between Junction Lane and Morris Street and provides limited useable parkland space.

Ku-ring-gai Council is currently delivering new parks in areas experiencing intensive urban redevelopment in an active programme of delivery.

In conclusion, the Planning Proposal for these specific sites is not inconsistent with the objectives and actions contained within either the Metropolitan Plan or the Draft Metropolitan Strategy and is, in fact, part of key strategic rationalisation of assets to provide facilities to support Ku-ring-gai's growth through to at least 2036. Indirectly, it represents a mechanism to actively support the delivery of many these objectives and actions.

# Q4. Is the planning proposal consistent with the local council's Community Strategic Plan or other local strategic plan?

Yes. The Planning Proposal is consistent with the *Ku-ring-gai Council Community Strategic Plan 2030*, which includes references to implementing planning objectives for the local centres.

The Community Strategic Plan is based around the following principle activity areas that align with Council's Management Plan:

- Community Development;
- Urban environment;
- Natural environment;
- Planning and development;
- Civic leadership and corporate services;
- Financial sustainability.

The proposed reclassification of the subject Council land is consistent with Community Strategic Plan 2030 as outlined below:

Under the *Community Development* principle activity, the proposed reclassification will assist in meeting the aim to make Council's community and cultural programs and services accessible, affordable and meet current and emerging needs.

Under the *Urban Environment* principle activity the proposed reclassification will assist in the aim that Council's assets are managed effectively to meet community needs and standards within available resources.

Under the *Natural Environment* principle activity the proposed reclassification will assist in the aim of respecting and actively participating in the care and management of the environment. Natural attributes of the sites cab be managed and will not be affected by the reclassification process.

Under the *Planning and Development* principle activity the proposed reclassification will assist in ensuring that the urban areas will become more liveable and sustainable to State Government and community demands for the provision additional housing, greater housing choice and associated facilities.

Under the *Financial Sustainability* principle activity the proposed reclassification will assist in meeting the aim that Council effectively manages its financial position to meet community expectations for projects and service delivery. The reclassification of the land to operational status will assist Council to consider the sale of the land. Council has an adopted 20 year long term financial model to assist in the financial planning and delivery of strategic projects.

#### Generic Plan of Management – Parks

The land at 27 Garrick Road, St Ives and at 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Chase is identified in Council's Generic Plan of Management Parks. The reclassification of this land would result in its removal from management arrangements under the plan of management.

# Q5. Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable state environmental planning policies?

The following State Environmental Planning Policies are considered relevant to the Planning Proposal:

State Environmental Planning Policy	Consistency of Planning Proposal
SEPP 19 – Bushland in Urban Areas	Consistent. The land zonings and development standards are not proposed to change as a result of this Planning Proposal. The current LEP includes provisions for managing areas which contain urban Bushland.
SEPP 32 – Urban Consolidation	Consistent. The Planning Proposal facilitates urban consolidation by increasing the amount of land available for redevelopment in an existing urban area.
SEPP 55 – Remediation of Land	Consistent. Phase One Environmental Reports have been carried out on all four properties that are the subject of this reclassification. In each case, it was indicated that the previous land uses gave rise to a low risk of contamination and no further investigation is recommended.
SEPP 65 – Design Quality of Residential Flat Development	Consistent. In the event of a Development Application for a residential flat building on any of the subject sites, compliance with this SEPP will be assessed.
SEPP (Housing for Seniors or People with a Disability) 2004	Consistent. In the event of a Development Application for housing covered by this SEPP, on any of the subject sites, compliance with this SEPP will be assessed.
SEPP Building Sustainability Index: BASIX 2004	Consistent. Compliance with BASIX is a requirement of all new development in Ku-ring-gai.
SEPP Infrastructure 2007	Consistent. The sites are within existing developed areas and are proposed for low density residential development. It is not anticipated that there will be a

State Environmental Planning Policy	Consistency of Planning Proposal
	significant change in demand for infrastructure. The application of this SEPP in the delivery of the related Council infrastructure will be considered at the relevant time.
SEPP Affordable Rental Housing 2009	Consistent. In the event of a Development Application for housing covered by this SEPP, on any of the subject sites, compliance with this SEPP will be assessed. The provision of additional residential zones also assists with affordability by increasing the potential for supply.
SEPP Sydney Harbour Catchment 2005	Consistent. All Development is required to manage drainage and stormwater arising from the development at the time of the Development Application.

In summary, it is considered that the planning proposal for reclassification of these four sites is not inconsistent with any of the above SEPPs. Any further compliance and consistency with the above SEPPs necessarily related to a Development Application, will also be considered during the assessment of any development application on any of the four sites.

# Q6. Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable Ministerial Directions (s.117 directions)?

The following table identifies the proposal's consistency with the relevant Ministerial Directions.

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
<ul> <li>s.117 Direction Title</li> <li>1.1 Business and Industrial Zones</li> <li>Objectives</li> <li>(1) The objectives of this direction are to: <ul> <li>(a) encourage employment growth in suitable locations,</li> <li>(b) protect employment land in business and industrial zones, and</li> <li>(c) support the viability of identified strategic centres. Where this direction applies</li> <li>(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.</li> </ul> </li> <li>When this direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will affect land within an existing or proposed business or industrial zone (including the alteration of any existing business or industrial zone boundary).</li> <li>What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies</li> <li>(4) A planning proposal must:</li> <li>(a) give effect to the objectives of this direction,</li> <li>(b) retain the areas and locations of existing business and industrial zones,</li> <li>(c) not reduce the total potential floor space area for employment uses zones,</li> <li>(d) not reduce the total potential floor space area for</li> </ul>	
industrial uses in industrial zones, and (e) ensure that proposed new employment areas are in accordance with a strategy that is approved by the Director- General of the Department of Planning.	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
Consistency	
(5) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are:	
(a) justified by a strategy which:	
(i) gives consideration to the objective of this direction, and	
(ii) identifies the land which is the subject of the planning proposal (if the planning proposal relates to a particular site or sites), and	
(iii) is approved by the Director-General of the Department of Planning, or	
(b) justified by a study (prepared in support of the planning proposal) which gives consideration	
to the objective of this direction, or (c) in accordance with the relevant Regional Strategy or Sub- Regional Strategy prepared by the	
Department of Planning which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(d) of minor significance.	
Note: In this direction, "identified strategic centre" means a centre that has been identified as a strategic centre in a regional strategy, sub-regional strategy, or another strategy approved by the Director General.	
2.1 Environmental Protection Zones	Consistent. The Planning Proposal
Objective	applies to land which is identified as being environmentally sensitive. The Planning
(1) The objective of this direction is to protect and conserve environmentally sensitive areas.	Proposal will not reduce the existing and proposed environmental protection standards that will apply to the land and is
Where this direction applies	therefore consistent with the Local
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	Planning Direction.
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must include provisions that facilitate the protection and conservation of environmentally sensitive areas.	
(5) A planning proposal that applies to land within an environment protection zone or land otherwise identified for environment protection purposes in a LEP must not reduce the environmental protection standards that apply to the land (including by modifying development standards that apply to the land). This requirement does not apply to a change to a development standard for minimum lot size for a dwelling in accordance with clause (5) of Direction 1.5 "Rural Lands".	
Consistency	
(6) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are:	
b. justified by a strategy which:	
i. gives consideration to the objectives of this direction,	
ii. identifies the land which is the subject of the planning proposal (if the planning proposal relates to a particular site or sites), and	
iii. is approved by the Director-General of the Department of Planning, or	
<ul> <li>(b) justified by a study prepared in support of the planning proposal which gives consideration to the objectives of this direction, or</li> </ul>	
(c) in accordance with the relevant Regional Strategy or Sub- Regional Strategy prepared by the Department of Planning which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(d) is of minor significance.	
2.3 Heritage Conservation	No such items identified.
Objective	
(1) The objective of this direction is to conserve items, areas, objects and places of environmental heritage significance and indigenous heritage significance.	
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must contain provisions that facilitate the conservation of:	
(a) items, places, buildings, works, relics, moveable objects or precincts of environmental heritage significance to an area, in relation to the historical, scientific, cultural, social, archaeological, architectural, natural or aesthetic value of the item, area, object or place, identified in a study of the environmental heritage of the area,	
(b) Aboriginal objects or Aboriginal places that are protected under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974, and	
(c) Aboriginal areas, Aboriginal objects, Aboriginal places or landscapes identified by an Aboriginal heritage survey prepared by or on behalf of an Aboriginal Land Council, Aboriginal body or public authority and provided to the relevant planning authority, which identifies the area, object, place or landscape as being of heritage significance to Aboriginal culture and people.	
Consistency	
(5) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General)	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
that:	
(a) the environmental or indigenous heritage significance of the item, area, object or place is conserved by existing or draft environmental planning instruments, legislation, or regulations that apply to the land, or	
(b) the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are of minor significance.	
Note: In this direction:	
"conservation", "environmental heritage", "item", "place" and "relic" have the same meaning as in the Heritage Act 1977. "Aboriginal object", "Aboriginal area" and "Aboriginal place" have the same meaning as in the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974.	
Heritage conservation is covered by a compulsory clause in	
the Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order 2006. A LEP that adopts the Standard Instrument should identify such items, areas, objects or places of environmental heritage significance or indigenous heritage significance as are relevant to the terms of this direction on the Heritage Map and relevant Schedule of the LEP.	
3.1 Residential Zones	Consistent. The sites are located within
Objectives	existing residential suburbs and will utilise existing infrastructure and have
(1) The objectives of this direction are:	appropriate access to services.
(a) to encourage a variety and choice of housing types to provide for existing and future housing needs,	The proposal allows land to be zoned for residential purposes to be managed in a
(b) to make efficient use of existing infrastructure and services and ensure that new housing has appropriate access to infrastructure and services, and	manner consistent with the residential zoning that applies to adjoining or adjacent land.
(c) to minimise the impact of residential development on the environment and resource lands.	
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will affect land within:	
(a) an existing or proposed residential zone (including the alteration of any existing residential zone boundary),	
(b) any other zone in which significant residential development is permitted or proposed to be permitted.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must include provisions that encourage the provision of housing that will:	
(a) broaden the choice of building types and locations available in the housing market, and	
(b) make more efficient use of existing infrastructure and services, and	
(c) reduce the consumption of land for housing and associated urban development on the urban fringe, and	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
(d) be of good design.	
(5) A planning proposal must, in relation to land to which this direction applies:	
(a) contain a requirement that residential development is not permitted until land is adequately serviced (or arrangements satisfactory to the council, or other appropriate authority, have been made to service it), and	
(b) not contain provisions which will reduce the permissible residential density of land.	
Consistency	
(6) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are:	
(a) justified by a strategy which:	
(i) gives consideration to the objective of this direction, and	
(ii) identifies the land which is the subject of the planning proposal (if the planning proposal relates to a particular site or sites), and	
(iii) is approved by the Director-General of the Department of Planning, or	
(b) justified by a study prepared in support of the planning proposal which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(c) in accordance with the relevant Regional Strategy or Sub- Regional Strategy prepared by the Department of Planning which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(d) of minor significance	
3.4 Integrating Land Use and Transport	Consistent. At this stage of the Planning
Objective	Proposal, the appropriate State and Commonwealth public authorities have
(1) The objective of this direction is to ensure that urban structures, building forms, land use locations, development designs, subdivision and street layouts achieve the following planning objectives:	not yet been identified, and the Gateway Determination has yet to be issued by the Minister for Planning and Infrastructure. Consultation will need to be undertaken with public authorities including Transport
(a) improving access to housing, jobs and services by walking, cycling and public transport, and	with public authorities including Transport for New South Wales.
(b) increasing the choice of available transport and reducing dependence on cars, and	
(c) reducing travel demand including the number of trips generated by development and the distances travelled, especially by car, and	
(d) supporting the efficient and viable operation of public transport services, and	
(e) providing for the efficient movement of freight. Where this	
direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	
When this direction applies	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will create, alter or remove a zone or a provision relating to urban land, including land zoned for residential, business, industrial, village or tourist purposes.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must locate zones for urban purposes and include provisions that give effect to and are consistent with the aims, objectives and principles of:	
(a) Improving Transport Choice – Guidelines for planning and development (DUAP 2001), and	
(b) The Right Place for Business and Services – Planning Policy (DUAP 2001).	
Consistency	
(5) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are:	
(a) justified by a strategy which:	
(i) gives consideration to the objective of this direction, and	
(ii) identifies the land which is the subject of the planning proposal (if the planning proposal relates to a particular site or sites), and	
(iii) is approved by the Director-General of the Department of	
Planning, or	
(b) justified by a study prepared in support of the planning proposal which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(c) in accordance with the relevant Regional Strategy or Sub- Regional Strategy prepared by the Department of Planning which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(d) of minor significance.	
4.1 Acid Sulfate Soils	Consistent in that the proposal does not
Objective	alter any controls relating to acid sulphate soils.
(1) The objective of this direction is to avoid significant adverse environmental impacts from the use of land that has a probability of containing acid sulfate soils.	DKLEP 2013 contains provisions relating to acid sulphate soils.
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities that are responsible for land having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils, as shown on Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps held by the Department of Planning.	
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will apply to land having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils as shown on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
(4) The relevant planning authority must consider the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Guidelines adopted by the Director- General of the Department of Planning when preparing a planning proposal that applies to any land identified on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps as having a probability of acid sulfate soils being present.	
(5) When a relevant planning authority is preparing a planning proposal to introduce provisions to regulate works in acid sulfate soils, those provisions must be consistent with:	
<ul> <li>(a) the Acid Sulfate Soils Model LEP in the Acid Sulfate Soils</li> <li>Planning Guidelines adopted by the Director-General, or</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>(b) such other provisions provided by the Director-General of the Department of Planning that are consistent with the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Guidelines.</li> </ul>	
(6) A relevant planning authority must not prepare a planning proposal that proposes an intensification of land uses on land identified as having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps unless the relevant planning authority has considered an acid sulfate soils study assessing the appropriateness of the change of land use given the presence of acid sulfate soils. The relevant planning authority must provide a copy of any such study to the Director General prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of section 57 of the Act.	
(7) Where provisions referred to under paragraph (5) of this direction have not been introduced and the relevant planning authority is preparing a planning proposal that proposes an intensification of land uses on land identified as having a probability of acid sulfate soils on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps, the planning proposal must contain provisions consistent with paragraph (5).	
Consistency	
(8) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are:	
(a) justified by a study prepared in support of the planning proposal which gives consideration to the objective of this direction, or	
(b) of minor significance	
4.3 Flood Prone Land	Consistent. The sites are not considered
Objectives	as flood prone land in accordance with the flood plain development manual
(1) The objectives of this direction are:	2005 'Floodplain Development Manual'.
(a) to ensure that development of flood prone land is consistent with the NSW Government's Flood Prone Land Policy and the principles of the Floodplain Development Manual 2005, and	
(b) to ensure that the provisions of an LEP on flood prone land is commensurate with flood hazard and includes consideration of the potential flood impacts both on and off the subject land.	
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities that are responsible for flood prone land within their LGA.	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that creates, removes or alters a zone or a provision that affects flood prone land.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must include provisions that give effect	
to and are consistent with the NSW Flood Prone Land Policy and the principles of the Floodplain Development Manual 2005 (including the Guideline on Development Controls on Low Flood Risk Areas).	
(5) A planning proposal must not rezone land within the flood planning areas from Special Use, Special Purpose, Recreation, Rural or Environmental Protection Zones to a Residential, Business, Industrial, Special Use or Special Purpose Zone.	
<ul> <li>(6) A planning proposal must not contain provisions that apply to the flood planning areas which:</li> <li>(a) permit development in floodway areas,</li> <li>(b) permit development that will result in significant flood impacts to other properties,</li> <li>(c) permit a significant increase in the development of that land,</li> <li>(d) are likely to result in a substantially increased requirement for government spending on flood mitigation measures, infrastructure or services, or</li> <li>(e) permit development to be carried out without development consent except for the purposes of agriculture (not including dams, drainage canals, levees, buildings or structures in</li> </ul>	
floodways or high hazard areas), roads or exempt development. (7) A planning proposal must not impose flood related development controls above the residential flood planning level for residential development on land, unless a relevant planning authority provides adequate justification for those controls to the satisfaction of the Director-General (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General).	
(8) For the purposes of a planning proposal, a relevant planning authority must not determine a flood planning level that is inconsistent with the Floodplain Development Manual 2005 (including the Guideline on Development Controls on Low Flood Risk Areas) unless a relevant planning authority provides adequate justification for the proposed departure from that Manual to the satisfaction of the Director-General (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General).	
Consistency	
(9) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director- General (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) that:	
(a) the planning proposal is in accordance with a floodplain risk management plan prepared in accordance with the principles and guidelines of the Floodplain Development Manual 2005, or	
(b) the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are of minor significance.	
<b>Note:</b> "flood planning area", "flood planning level", "flood prone land" and "floodway area" have the same meaning as in the Floodplain Development Manual 2005.	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
4.4 Planning for Bushfire Protection	56-58 Koola Avenue and 97 Babbage Road are identified as being on Bushfire Prone Land.
Objectives (1) The objectives of this direction are:	
(a) to protect life, property and the environment from bush fire hazards, by discouraging the establishment of incompatible land uses in bush fire prone areas, and	Consultation with RFS can occur following gateway determination.
(b) to encourage sound management of bush fire prone areas.	The planning proposal proposes a residential zone for these sites. No
Where this direction applies	development is proposed at this time.
(2) This direction applies to all local government areas in which the responsible Council is required to prepare a bush fire prone land map under section 146 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the EP&A Act), or, until such a map has been certified by the Commissioner of the NSW Rural Fire Service, a map referred to in Schedule 6 of that Act.	Appropriate measures consistent with Planning for Bushfire Protection 2006 can be determined at development application stage.
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will affect, or is in proximity to land mapped as bushfire prone land.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) In the preparation of a planning proposal the relevant planning authority must consult with the Commissioner of the NSW Rural Fire Service following receipt of a gateway determination under section 56 of the Act, and prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of section 57 of the Act, and take into account any comments so made,	
(5) A planning proposal must:	
(a) have regard to Planning for Bushfire Protection 2006,	
(b) introduce controls that avoid placing inappropriate developments in hazardous areas, and	
(c) ensure that bushfire hazard reduction is not prohibited within the APZ.	
(6) A planning proposal must, where development is proposed, comply with the following provisions, as appropriate:	
(a) provide an Asset Protection Zone (APZ) incorporating at a minimum:	
(i) an Inner Protection Area bounded by a perimeter road or reserve which circumscribes the hazard side of the land intended for development and has a building line consistent with the incorporation of an APZ, within the property, and	
(ii) an Outer Protection Area managed for hazard reduction and located on the bushland side of the perimeter road,	
(b) for infill development (that is development within an already subdivided area), where an appropriate APZ cannot be achieved, provide for an appropriate performance standard, in consultation with the NSW Rural Fire Service. If the provisions of the planning proposal permit Special Fire Protection Purposes (as defined under section 100B of the Rural Fires Act 1997), the APZ provisions must be complied with,	
(c) contain provisions for two-way access roads which links to perimeter roads and/or to fire trail networks,	
<ul> <li>(d) contain provisions for adequate water supply for fire fighting purposes,</li> </ul>	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
(e) minimise the perimeter of the area of land interfacing the hazard which may be developed,	
(f) introduce controls on the placement of combustible materials in the Inner Protection Area.	
Consistency	
(7) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General) that the council has obtained written advice from the Commissioner of the NSW Rural Fire Service, to the effect that, notwithstanding the noncompliance, the NSW Rural Fire Service does not object to the progression of the planning proposal.	
6.1 Approval and Referral Requirements	Consistent. The Planning Proposal does
Objective	not include provisions that require the concurrence, consultation or referral of
(1) The objective of this direction is to ensure that LEP provisions encourage the efficient and appropriate assessment of development.	future DAs to a Minister or Public Authority.
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal must:	
(a) minimise the inclusion of provisions that require the concurrence, consultation or referral of development applications to a Minister or public authority, and	
(b) not contain provisions requiring concurrence, consultation or referral of a Minister or public authority unless the relevant planning authority has obtained the approval of:	
(i) the appropriate Minister or public authority, and	
(ii) the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director- General), prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of section 57 of the Act, and	
(c) not identify development as designated development unless the relevant planning authority:	
(i) can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) that the class of development is likely to have a significant impact on the environment, and	
(ii) has obtained the approval of the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of section 57 of the Act. Consistency	
(5) A planning proposal must be substantially consistent with the terms of this direction.	
<b>Note:</b> In this direction "public authority" has the same meaning as section 4 of the Environmental Planning and	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
Assessment Act	
1979.	
6.2 Reserving land for public purposes	Justifiably inconsistent.
Objectives	The planning proposal seeks to rezone land currently reserved for public open
(1) The objectives of this direction are:	space at 27 Garrick Road St Ives.
(a) to facilitate the provision of public services and facilities by reserving land for public purposes, and	Council is the relevant public authority. Director General's concurrence is sought
(b) to facilitate the removal of reservations of land for public purposes where the land is no longer required for acquisition.	through this Planning Proposal.
Where this direction applies	This Planning Proposal demonstrates the
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	strategic objectives of Ku-ring-gai Council with respect to the consolidation and
When this direction applies	delivery of civic, community and cultural facilities at Gordon and further
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal.	demonstrates that Ku-ring-gai is actively increasing the provision of new open
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies.	space in areas of intensive redevelopment where they will be actively used through its adopted Open Space Acquisition
(4) A planning proposal must not create, alter or reduce existing zonings or reservations of land for public purposes without the approval of the relevant public authority and the Director- General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General).	Strategy including: Balcombe Park, Wahroonga (opened in November 2012), Bruce Avenue Park (completed December 2013 and to be officially opened as Greengate Park in 2014) and the doubling
(5) When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to reserve land for a public purpose in a planning proposal and the land would be required to be acquired under Division 3 of Part 2 of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991, the relevant planning authority must:	of Cameron Park in Turramurra now under construction. Ku-ring-gai Council has also acquired 2-10 Bent Street in Lindfield within the town centre area which is currently in Masterplanning stage together with the adjoining land holding (recently reclassified) at Drovers Way /
(a) reserve the land in accordance with the request, and	Beaconsfield Parade in conjunction with
(b) include the land in a zone appropriate to its intended future use or a zone advised by the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General), and	Transport for NSW. Collectively these acquisitions and deliveries well exceed the area affected by the reclassified properties.
(c) identify the relevant acquiring authority for the land.	Ku-ring-gai is ten years in to a 30 year
(6) When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to include provisions in a planning proposal relating to the use of any land reserved for a public purpose before that land is acquired, the relevant planning authority must:	period of redevelopment and demographic change. New, centrally-located civic, cultural, community and recreational facilities in well-located centres as well as improved, well-located, accessible parks are an essential part of the asset delivery
(a) include the requested provisions, or	and renewal process to support that growth. As an established area, this
(b) take such other action as advised by the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) with respect to the use of the land before it is acquired.	process cannot be wholly funded by development contributions and depends on asset rationalisation to deliver new assets.
(7) When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to include provisions in a planning proposal to rezone and/or remove a reservation of any land that is reserved for public purposes because the land is no longer designated by that public authority for acquisition, the relevant planning authority must rezone and/or remove the relevant reservation in accordance with the request.	
Consistency	
(8) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-General) that:	
(a) with respect to a request referred to in paragraph (7), that further information is required before appropriate planning controls for the land can be determined, or	
(b) the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent with the terms of this direction are of minor significance.	
Note: Clause 12 of the EP&A Reg 2000 provides that a planning proposal for a proposed local environmental plan:	
(a) may not contain a provision reserving land for a purpose referred to in section 26 (1) (c) of the EP&A Act, and	
(b) may not contain a provision in respect of that reservation as required by section 27 of the EP&A Act, unless the public authority responsible for the acquisition of the land has notified the relevant planning authority of its concurrence to the inclusion of such a provision in the planning proposal.	
In this direction: "public authority" has the same meaning as section 4 of the EP&A Act.	
The use or reservation of land for a public purpose has the same meaning as in section 26(1)(c) of the EP&A Act.	
6.3 Site specific provisions	Consistent. The proposal does not
Objective	contain any restrictive site specific planning controls.
(1) The objective of this direction is to discourage unnecessarily restrictive site specific planning controls.	
Where this direction applies	
(2) This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities.	
When this direction applies	
(3) This direction applies when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will allow a particular development to be carried out.	
What a relevant planning authority must do if this direction applies	
(4) A planning proposal that will amend another environmental planning instrument in order to allow a particular development proposal to be carried out must either:	
(a) allow that land use to be carried out in the zone the land is situated on, or	
(b) rezone the site to an existing zone already applying in the environmental planning instrument that allows that land use without imposing any development standards or requirements in addition to those already contained in that zone, or	
(c) allow that land use on the relevant land without imposing any development standards or requirements in addition to those already contained in the principal environmental planning instrument being amended.	
(5) A planning proposal must not contain or refer to drawings that show details of the development proposal.	
Consistency	
(6) A planning proposal may be inconsistent with the terms of this direction only if the relevant planning authority can satisfy the Director-General of the Department of Planning (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Director-	

s.117 Direction Title	Consistency of Planning Proposal
General) that the provisions of the planning proposal that are inconsistent are of minor significance.	
	The potential development of the sites will contribute to meeting the residential housing targets and local commercial/retail needs in the Metropolitan Plan.

Should the Planning Proposal be supported at the Gateway Determination, further detail on consistency with Ministerial Directions will be provided following the consultation with the relevant public and private authorities.

### Section C – Environmental, Social and Economic Impact

# Q7. Is there any likelihood that critical habitat or threatened species, populations or ecological communities, or their habitats, will be adversely affected as a result of the proposal?

KLEP218 incorporated into the KPSO contains biodiversity and riparian overlays. All the sites are identified as having areas of biodiversity significance. 27 Garrick Road, St Ives and 136 A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane are identified as having Category 3 Riparian Lands. This planning proposal to reclassify the land will not affect or remove the application of the biodiversity overlay.

# Q8. Are there any other likely environmental effects as a result of the planning proposal and how are they proposed to be managed?

As noted above, parts of the sites have been identified as significant in terms of biodiversity or riparian land. The planning proposal for the reclassification of the site will not result in any additional environmental effects.

Any issues that may arise would be properly addressed during the assessment of any development application/s on the land.

Any redevelopment of the site consequential to action following this planning proposal may result in the loss of existing car parking spaces.

#### Q9. Has the planning proposal adequately addressed any social and economic effects?

#### Social Effects – General

Yes. The reclassification of the sites will have social benefits for the community in that it enable the future development of land that is for uses consistent with its proposed zoning under DKLEP2013 enabling scarce public funds to be used for purposes identified by the Council including a new administration centre at Gordon.

#### Social Effects – Heritage

None of the properties are affecting by heritage provisions.

#### Economic Effects

In relation to economic effects, Council purchased the former "SUN" building at 828 Pacific Highway for the purposes of a new administration building. The acquisition of 828 Pacific

Highway was made on the basis that it would be funded by the rationalisation of under-utilised Council assets. This principal was the basis of the Capital Expenditure Review prepared and submitted to the Division of Local Government in support of the acquisition. The Planning Proposal will enable a positive economic impact in facilitating the orderly and economic provision of Council facilities.

### **Section D – State and Commonwealth Interests**

#### Q10. Is there adequate public infrastructure for the planning proposal?

The proposal may result in minor increase in demand for facilities in an existing urban area where all utility services are available.

Consultation with key agencies about the capacity to service the sites was not undertaken prior to submitting this Planning Proposal to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure. Consultation will need to be undertaken with public authorities.

Consultation with State and Commonwealth agencies will be undertaken in accordance with **Section 5** of this Planning Proposal.

# Q11. What are the views of State and Commonwealth public authorities consulted in accordance with the gateway determination?

At this stage, the appropriate State and Commonwealth public authorities have not been identified or consulted, and the Gateway Determination has yet to be issued by the Minister for Planning and Infrastructure. Consultation with the following Government authorities, agencies and other stakeholders in regard to this Planning Proposal are proposed to include:

NSW Department of Planning of Infrastructure; Roads and Maritime Services (formerly the RTA) NSW; Sydney Water Corporation; Energy Australia; NSW Department of Transport; NSW Rural Fire Service

Council seeks confirmation of the above list through the Minister's Gateway Determination.
### Part 4 Mapping

### Land the Subject of the Planning Proposal



#### Property Description Map for 27 Garrick Road St Ives







### Current Land Use Zones under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance

Current Land Use Zoning of 27 Garrick Road St Ives under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance





Current Land Use Zoning of Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance-Note that only that part zoned 3(a)-(A3) is the subject of this Planning Proposal



#### Current Land Use Zoning of 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under the Ku-ring-gai Planning



### Current Development Standards relating to the Land under the KPSO

#### Development Standards currently applying to 27 Garrick Road St Ives under the Ku-ringgai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

27 Garrick Street St Ives is currently zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

## Development Standards currently applying to Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

Part of 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara is zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards. There is no proposed change to the zoning of that part of the site that is zoned for Public Recreation.

The remainder of the site the subject of this Planning Proposal, is zoned 3(a)-(A3) Business Retail. The KPSO incorporates development standards within the written instrument. Part IV Business Centre Provisions includes Clause 30B(2) includes a table which indicates that the floor space ratio applicable to the A3 Floor Space Zone indicated as 3(a)-(A3) is 0.75:1.

## Development Standards currently applying to 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase is currently zoned for open space and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

# Development Standards currently applying to 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga under the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (FSR, Height and Minimum Lot Size)

The area known as 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga is effectively a street closure of Morris Lane where it meets Junction Lane. At present it has the same zoning as the roads (uncoloured) and, as such, has no applicable development standards.

### Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – Proposed Deferred Areas

### Area 12 – East Killara – including Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara

This map explains why only maps relating to the amendment of the KPSO have been provided for Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara. This area has been deferred under Draft Ku-ring-gai LEP 2013.



## Draft Proposed Land Use Zoning under KLEP 2013 as adopted – to be superseded by this Planning Proposal

Proposed Land Use Zoning of 27 Garrick Road St Ives under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – to be superseded by this Planning Proposal



## Proposed Land Use Zoning of Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – to be superseded by this Planning Proposal

At the time of drafting this planning proposal, this site remains a deferred matter under Draft Kuring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 and, therefore, for this property only, there is no draft zoning that is proposed to be superseded by this planning proposal.



Proposed Land Use Zoning of 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – to be superseded by this Planning Proposal

Proposed Land Use Zoning of 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga under Draft Kuring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – to be superseded by this Planning Proposal



### Proposed zoning under this Planning Proposal under DKLEP 2013



Proposed Land Use Zoning of 27 Garrick Road St Ives under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal (as per OMC resolution 30/4/2013)

Proposed Land Use Zoning of 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal (as per OMC resolution 30/4/2013)



Proposed Land Use Zoning of 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga under Draft Kuring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal (as per OMC resolution 30/4/2013)



## Proposed zoning and development standards under this Planning Proposal under KPSO for the site in the deferred area

#### Proposed Land Use Zoning of Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara under the KPSO

The only development standard within the KPSO applying to this site as proposed to be zoned 2(b) is a minimum lot size of 836m<sup>2</sup> which is contained in the written instrument. Height and floor space ratios for residential zones are included within the applicable Development Control Plan.



### Proposed development standards for this Planning Proposal – DKLEP 2013

Proposed Development Standards for 27 Garrick Road St Ives under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Floor Space Ratio





Proposed Development Standards for 27 Garrick Road St Ives under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Height of Buildings

Proposed Development Standards for 27 Garrick Road St Ives under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Minimum Lot Sizes





Proposed Development Standards for 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Floor Space Ratio

Proposed Development Standards for 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Height of Buildings





Proposed Development Standards for 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Minimum Lot Sizes

Proposed Development Standards for 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga under Draft Ku-ring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Floor Space Ratio



Proposed Development Standards for 136A Morris / Junction Lane Wahroonga under Draft Kuring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Height of Buildings



Proposed Development Standards for 136A Morris / Junction Lane Wahroonga under Draft Kuring-gai Local Environmental Plan 2013 – arising from this Planning Proposal – Minimum Lot Sizes



### **Aerial Photographs**

### Aerial Photo for 27 Garrick Road St Ives





### Aerial Photo for 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase





### Part 5 – Community Consultation

### **Proposed Community Consultation Strategy**

Community consultation on the Planning Proposal will be undertaken by Council (subject to receiving a determination to proceed at the gateway) in accordance with the publication "A Guide to Preparing Local Environmental Plans", published by the Department of Planning. The community consultation will not be commenced prior to obtaining approval from the Minister or Director-General. The notification and consultation process will be initiated after the s.55 submission has been sent to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure.

Council's consultation methodology will include, but not be limited to:

- forwarding a copy of the Planning Proposal, the gateway determination and any relevant supporting studies or additional information to State and Commonwealth Public Authorities identified in the gateway determination;
- giving notice of the public exhibition in the main local newspaper (the North Shore Times);
- exhibiting the Planning Proposal in accordance with the gateway determination for a minimum period of 28 days duration;
- exhibiting the Planning Proposal pursuant to s.57 and all supporting documentation at Council's Administration Centre and on Council's website;
- notifying of the Planning Proposal's exhibition on Council's website, including providing copies of the Planning Proposal, all supporting studies and additional information and the gateway determination;
- notifying affected landowners and adjoining land owners where relevant;
- holding a Public Hearing; and
- any other consultation methods deemed appropriate for the proposal.

### **Reclassification of Public Land**

Pursuant to Section 55(3) of the Act, the Director-General may issue requirements with respect to the preparation of a planning proposal. In this regard, the Department of Planning Guideline *A Guide to Preparing Local Environmental Plans* sets out the Director-General's requirements regarding the matters that must be addressed in the justification of all planning proposals to reclassify public land.

These requirements are addressed below:

#### Is the planning proposal the result of any strategic study or report?

Yes. As outlined in the responses to Questions 1 and 4 within this Planning Proposal, Council resolved, at the Ordinary Meeting held on 30 April 2013, to prepare a Planning Proposal to rezone and reclassify the underutilised land from Community land to Operational land. This principal was the basis of the Capital Expenditure Review prepared and submitted to the Division of Local Government in support of the acquisition.

Additionally, Council has undertaken extensive strategic planning for the delivery of community and recreation facilities to support new development in the area as well as in accordance with an active asset renewal programme. Supporting studies include Ku-ring-gai Community Facilities Strategy 2009 and the revised and updated Ku-ring-gai Draft Community Facilities Strategy 2014 as well as Ku-ring-gai Contributions Plan 2010. The delivery of new community facilities in an area where there is high dwelling and population growth but also a large existing population requires a considerable co-contribution from Council on behalf of the existing population since new development can only lawfully provide for its fair share of demand. Accordingly the extension, augmentation and delivery of new community and recreation facilities for current and future growth, necessitates the funding of the proportional cocontribution from existing community assets in order to deliver new community assets to continue to serve Ku-ring-gai's population now and into the future. The purchase of 828 Pacific Highway and the resultant release of 818 Pacific Highway for future community use centralised in Gordon, is part of this strategy.

## Is the planning proposal consistent with the local council's community plan, or other local strategic plan?

Yes. Ku-ring-gai Council has adopted a number of 'strategic' plans, including the following:- Kuring-gai Council Community Strategic Plan 2030; Ku-ring-gai Sustainability Vision 2008-2033; and Ku-ring-gai Integrated Transport Strategy – July 2011.

The Planning Proposal is considered to be consistent with the above plans/strategies as outlined in this planning proposal.

### If the provisions of the planning proposal include the extinguishment of any interests in the land, an explanation of the reasons why the interests are proposed to be extinguished:

Available Council records have identified that there are a number of interests that would need to be extinguished in order to allow Council to reclassify the sites from community to operational land.

### 27 Garrick Road, St Ives

27 Garrick Road (Lot 23 in DP30335) is a public reserve that is currently zoned Recreation 6(a). It will cease to be a public reserve as it is proposed to be rezoned as R2 - Low density Residential. This site is affected by a caveat by the Registrar General forbidding registration of dealing with estate or interest affecting the land not in accordance with the terms of a declaration of trust dated 24 August 1960. It is proposed that this interest be extinguished to allow greater flexibility in the use of the land.

Council is required to extinguish this interest (caveat) in order to successfully reclassify 27 Garrick Street, St Ives from community to operational status. At the Ordinary Meeting held on 30 April 2013, Council resolved to formally seek to discharge all interests on this property.

#### 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga

Junction Lane (Lot 3 in DP547626) is affected by a right of way terminating on an agreed event affecting the part of the site show 6 wide in DP452643. It is proposed to be extinguished to allow greater flexibility in the use of the land in the future. Future ROW's will be dealt with at the divestment or redevelopment stage.

Due to the existing right of way, Council is required to extinguish this interest in order to successfully reclassify 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane, Wahroonga from community to operational status. At the Ordinary Meeting held on 30 April 2013, Council resolved to formally seek to discharge all interests on this property. Details are included in the property information in the Appendices.

## The concurrence of the landowner, where the land is not owned by the relevant planning authority

Council is the landowner of all three sites and has endorsed the Preparation of the Planning Proposal.

### Part 6 Project Timeline

It is anticipated that the Planning Proposal will take effect towards the end of 2014 around November 2014. The indicative timeline for the progression of this Planning Proposal is indicated in the following table:

Stage	Timing		
Anticipated date of Gateway determination	Late May 2014		
Agency consultation (pre and post exhibition as required	Late May 2014 to Late June		
by Gateway determination)	2014 (28 days)		
Note: If must be completed prior to exhibition period, the			
dates following would be extended by 3-4 weeks.			
Target Date for Advertising Exhibition in the Local Press	Friday 6 June 2014		
Commencement and completion dates for public	Friday 6 June 2014 to Friday 4		
exhibition period	July inclusive (28 days)		
Target Date for Advertising Public Hearing in the Local	Friday 11 July 2014 (minimum		
Press	21 days in advance of Public		
	Hearing)		
Prospective dates for public hearing	Week beginning Monday 4		
	August 2014		
Timeframe for consideration of submissions	June - August 2014		
Timeframe for Chairpersons Report	Mid-August - Early September		
	2014		
Preparation of Report to Council	Late August / September 2014		
Targeted Dates for Ordinary Meeting of Council	9/9, 16/9, 7/10 or 21/10/2014		
Legal drafting / Plan Making / Return to Department	October – November 2014		
Anticipated date of forwarding for final completion.	November – December 2014		

### APPENDICES

### **APPENDIX 1**

**Report to Council Meeting** 

### PLANNING PROPOSAL TO RECLASSIFY LAND FOR RELOCATION OF ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

PURPOSE OF REPORT:	Council purchased the former "SUN" building at 828 Pacific Highway for the purposes of a new administration building. The acquisition gives Council a significant strategic landholding on the west side of Gordon with frontage to the Pacific Highway, McIntyre Street and Dumaresq Street. This precinct will be master planned to provide a civic hub for community facilities, open space and Council's civic and administrative functions.
	The acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway was only made on the basis that it would be funded by the rationalisation of under-utilised Council assets. This principal was the basis of the Capital Expenditure Review prepared and submitted to the Division of Local Government in support of the acquisition.
BACKGROUND:	On 4 December 2012 Council settled on the purchase of 828 Pacific Highway after several years of negotiations. The acquisition was made by Council on the basis it would be fully funded from asset sales.
COMMENTS:	With the lead time of reclassification and/or rezoning as required, being in the order of 12-18 months, it is imperative that Council commences the statutory processes to enable disposal immediately.
RECOMMENDATION:	That Council prepares a Planning Proposal(s) to rezone and/or reclassify from community land to operational land and that a further report be brought back to Council following the reclassification process.

### PURPOSE OF REPORT

Council purchased the former "SUN" building at 828 Pacific Highway for the purposes of a new administration building. The acquisition gives Council a significant strategic landholding on the west side of Gordon with frontage to the Pacific Highway, McIntyre Street and Dumaresq Street. This precinct will be master planned to provide a civic hub for community facilities, open space and Council's civic and administrative functions.

The acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway was only made on the basis that it would be funded by the rationalisation of under-utilised Council assets. This principal was the basis of the Capital Expenditure Review prepared and submitted to the Division of Local Government in support of the acquisition.

### BACKGROUND

Council owned the freehold land at 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon. The land was however encumbered by a ground lease with an expiry date of 25 August 2090. Council sought to acquire the building and therefore extinguish the ground lease to regain freehold interest in the property.

On 4 December 2012, Council settled the purchase of 828 Pacific Highway after several years of negotiations. The acquisition was made by Council on the basis it would be fully funded from asset sales.

On 20 March 2012 Council resolved, in part:

That an open report be submitted to Council for the adoption of the following sites for the purpose of rezoning and reclassification (as appropriate) to Operational land status in a new Local Environmental Plan(s):

- 818 Pacific Highway, Gordon Being Lot 2 DP 786550
- 9 Dumaresq Street, Gordon Being Lot A DP 355615
- 5 Dumaresq Street, Gordon Being Lot C DP 3862839
- 7 Dumaresq Street, Gordon Being Lot D DP 386283
- 2 & 4 Moree Street, Gordon Being Lot 4 DP 3965 & Lot 5 DP 3965
- Culworth Avenue Car Park Being Lot 6 Sec 1 DP 3694, Lot 1 DP 119937, Lot 2 DP 932235, Lot 1 DP 359800, Lot 1 DP 169841, Lot 2 DP 119937 and Lot 3 DP 119937
- 2A Park Avenue, Gordon Being Lot 12 DP852087
- 4 Park Avenue, Gordon Being Lot 11 DP852087
- 9 Havilah Lane, Gordon Being Lot 21 DP713207
- 19 Hughes Place, Lindfield Being Lot 23 DP28233
- 62 Pacific Highway, Roseville Being Lot 2 DP202148
- 27 Garrick Road, St Ives Being Lot 43 DP30335
- 9 Eric Street, Wahroonga Being Lot 1 DP662194
- 56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara Being Lot 3 DP588630
- 97 Babbage Road, Roseville Being Part Lot 47 DP13444
- 136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga Being Lot 3 DP547626 & Lot A DP410082
- Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road) Being Closed Road
- 57 Merrivale Road, Pymble Being Lot 2 DP252197
- 6A Peace Avenue, Pymble Being Lot 2 DP202873
- Kulgoa Road, Pymble (Adjoining No. 1) Being Lot 19 DP3666
- 77A Bradfield Road, West Lindfield Being Lot 53 DP261073
- 17 Marian Street Killara

• That a further report be brought back to Council detailing the potential future divestment of lands contained in this report with a further briefing to Councillors prior to consideration.

The full report to Council of 20 March 2012 is provided as **Confidential Attachment 1** with the exception of the risk assessment matrix which is referred to later in this report.

### COMMENTS

Note: Table 1 below covers all the sites adopted by Council at its meeting of 20 March 2012. Some sites are no longer available for consideration for reclassification and divestment to fund the 828 Pacific Highway Acquisition.

4a Moree Street, acquired by Council shortly before it considered the report of 20 March 2012 has been added to the table insofar as there will be some residual land available for disposal with 2-4 Moree Street after provision is made for a through block link between Moree Street and St Johns Avenue.

The sites that are proposed for reclassification and or rezoning and disposal are listed in Table 1 below:

Property	Relevant		Conditions/		
Address	Plan	Zoning	Constrains	Notes	Recommendation
818 Pacific Highway, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre		For master planning	Reclassify for operational purposes only upon the building being vacated by Council. Not disposal.
9,15 and 17 Dumaresq Street, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre		For master planning only	No change
2-4 Moree Street, Gordon	KLEP (Local centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre	Location of road link through to St Johns Ave needs to be determined, designed and secured prior to disposal of balance.		Reclassify for disposal
4a Moree Street, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre	Location of road link through to St Johns Ave needs to be determined, designed and secured prior to disposal of balance.		Currently Operational. No change required.
Culworth Avenue Car Park, Killara	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	Residential 2(d3)/R4* (4 storeys)	Up to 100 underground spaces to be provided depending on feasibility and demand.	Excluding 17 Marian Street, which is listed separately.	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify. At the time of finalisation of draft PLEP consider removing 4 storey

#### Table 1

Property	Relevant		Conditions/		_
Address	Plan	Zoning	Constrains	Notes	Recommendation
2A Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	R4 High Density Residential	Alternate location for Preschool or preschool to be retained on site in heritage building to be retained in any redevelopment of the site. Subject to negotiation		height restriction. Reclassify for disposal with 4 Park Avenue, Gordon.
4 Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	R4 High Density Residential	Alternate accommodation for Lifeline		Reclassify for disposal with 2 Park Avenue, Gordon.
9 Havilah Lane, Lindfield	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre	Nil	Not available to fund 828 Pacific Highway Purchase	Subject to a separate reclassification process considered by Council 9 April 2013, min. 86.
19 Hughes Place, East Lindfield	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	Business B1 Neighbour- hood Centre	Nil		Reclassify for disposal.
62 Pacific Highway, Roseville	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	B2 Local Centre	Rear handle only.	Only one potential buyer.	Reclassify for subdivision and disposal of rear handle only. Roseville Memorial Park to be classified back to Community at completion of subdivision.
27 Garrick Road, St Ives	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	RE1 Public Recreation	Nil		Rezone R2 Low Density Residential and reclassify for disposal.
9 Eric Street, Wahroonga	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	R2 Low Density Residential	Lot 1 DP662194	Road Closure possibly required.	Reclassify if required and subdivide for sale as two lots
56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	Business B1 Neighbour- hood Centre	1,568 m <sup>2</sup> fronting Koola Ave only. Retention of part of the site for inclusion in a "community village green" to be investigated.		Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification and rezoning to R2 Low Density Residential.
97 Babbage	KPSO,	RE1 Public	Nil		Initiate Planning
Property	Relevant		Conditions/		
---	--	--	--	---	--
Address	Plan	Zoning	Constrains	Notes	Recommendation
Road, Roseville	currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	Recreation		-	Proposal for reclassification and rezoning to R2 Low Density Residential.
136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	RE1 Public Recreation	Being Lot 3 DP547626 & Lot A DP410082 Lot encumbered with ROW. Sale to adjoining owners only.	Road Closure possibly required.	Rezone R2 Low Density Residential and reclassify for disposal.
Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road)	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	RE1 Public Recreation	Dedicated road but records indicate it is closed. Two properties have access across land. Past actions of Council to be investigated.		Retain as R2 Low Density Residential post exhibition for disposal. May require reclassification.
57 Merrivale Road, Pymble	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	R2 Low Density Residential	Pymble Playgroup	For disposal as a going concern.	Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification.
6A Peace Avenue, Pymble	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	R2 Low Density Residential	Lot 2 DP202873 Access lane potential to sell to adjoining owners only.		Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification if required.
Kulgoa Road, Pymble (Adjoining No. 1)	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	E2 Environmental Conservation	Small 310m <sup>2</sup> lot adjoining 1 Kulgoa Road and encroaches into the road reserve.		No further consideration.
77A Bradfield Road, West Lindfield	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	R2 Low Density Residential	Lot 53 DP261073 275m <sup>2</sup> of vacant land between 2 residential properties. Potential to on sell to adjoining owners only. Currently provides access into LCNP.	Road Closure possibly required. Sale to adjoining owners only.	Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification if required.
17 Marian Street, Killara	KPSO, currently part of Draft KLEP 2013	Business B1 Neighbourhood Centre	Nil		Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification.
1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres)	R4 High Density Residential	Pymble Town – front portion		Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification.

Property Address	Relevant Plan	Zoning	Conditions/ Constrains	Notes	Recommendation
	2012				
1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	R4 High Density Residential	Pymble Town – front rear		Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification.

Throughout the process of preparing this report a number of other sites have been identified for investigation. A further report will be forthcoming in relation to these sites:

Table 2	
Property Type	Address
Education -	
Childcare	261 Mona Vale Road, St Ives
Reserve -	
Drainage	drainage reserve at rear of 5 Crescent Close Warrawee
Reserve -	drainage reserve at rear of property, linked with 4-5 Crescent Close
Drainage	Warrawee
	portion of formed road reserve [pathway] adjoining residential
Lane - Public	premises – part of Monteith Lane
	portion of formed road reserve [pathway] adjoining residential
Lane - Public	premises – known as Brisbane Walk
	portion of formed road reserve [pathway] adjoining residential
Lane - Public	premises – part of Roland lane
	A drainage easement that runs between Griffith Avenue and Calga
Reserve -	Street, Roseville Chase, between 23 and 25 Griffith and 30 and 32
Drainage	Calga. Lot 99 DP15524 know as 30A Calga Street
Public Pathway	Lot 5 DP512700 – rear of 28A Duff Street Turramurra
	Lot 3 DP505818 – rear portion of private property currently encroaching
Public Pathway	on Council land without permission - Linked with Cornwall Avenue
Reserve -	Lot 1 DP 1002698 - Drainage reserve between 32-34 Eastern Arterial
Drainage	Road Killara
Public Reserve	9 Dobell Place St Ives
Reserve -	
Drainage	Land between 96-100 Stanhope Road Killara

## **GOVERNANCE MATTERS**

Council's charter under the *Local Government Act 1993* is fairly broad. A number of elements of the charter which could be taken as applying to the management and divestment of land are highlighted below:

## 8 The council's charter

- (1) A council has the following charter:
- to provide directly or on behalf of other levels of government, after due consultation, adequate, equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the community and to ensure that those services and facilities are managed efficiently and effectively
- to exercise community leadership
- to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and actively promotes the principles of multiculturalism
- to promote and to provide and plan for the needs of children

- to properly manage, develop, protect, restore, enhance and conserve the environment of the area for which it is responsible, in a manner that is consistent with and promotes the principles of ecologically sustainable development
- to have regard to the long term and cumulative effects of its decisions
- to bear in mind that it is the custodian and trustee of public assets and to effectively plan for, account for and manage the assets for which it is responsible
- to engage in long-term strategic planning on behalf of the local community
- to exercise its functions in a manner that is consistent with and promotes social justice principles of equity, access, participation and rights
- to facilitate the involvement of councillors, members of the public, users of facilities and services and council staff in the development, improvement and co-ordination of local government
- to raise funds for local purposes by the fair imposition of rates, charges and fees, by income earned from investments and, when appropriate, by borrowings and grants
- *to keep the local community and the State government (and through it, the wider community) informed about its activities*
- to ensure that, in the exercise of its regulatory functions, it acts consistently and without bias, particularly where an activity of the council is affected
- to be a responsible employer.

(2) A council, in the exercise of its functions, must pursue its charter but nothing in the charter or this section gives rise to, or can be taken into account in, any civil cause of action.

A review of under-utilised assets, and the sale of some assets to fund the acquisition of other assets which are more relevant to the changing requirements of the community, is entirely consistent with Council's charter.

Council's adopted *Acquisition and Divestment of Land Policy, 2009* will guide the ultimate disposal of any assets which Council ultimately decides to divest. In relation to sites which require reclassification and/or rezoning prior to divestment, there are a number of "hold points" which require specific Council consideration to allow the statutory plan making process to continue, prior Council specifically resolving to divest the asset. This decision in particular cannot be delegated.

In January 2010, the Division of Local Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet released its final review report on the *Promoting Better Practice Program* in relation to Council. The report addresses a number of issues of Council's services, structure and facilities, and made the following observations about accommodation issues:

The quality of the working environment in the Ku-ring-gai Council Chambers and Customer Service Centre needs to be considered by the Council in its strategic planning. Some work areas appeared to be very crowded and staff amenities we observed were old and not of the standard one might expect to see in a modern office environment. The relocation of the Operations staff following completion of the depot in November 2009 may allow Council the opportunity to address this.

Further, in relation to reclassification and asset rationalisation, the DLG made the following observations:

#### Public Land Reclassification

The making of the new LEP will bring with it the need for Council to consider whether its current land holdings are appropriately classified. At the time of the review, the Council was engaged in community consultation to address this issue. Since 2005 this has been identified by staff and the Department of Planning as a priority.

## RISK MANAGEMENT

The most significant risks associated with acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway arise with the failure to dispose of sufficient assets in a timely manner to pay down borrowings. This leads to Council maintaining excessive levels of borrowings for extended periods of time. This will serve to limit Council's capacity to carry out other capital works projects included in the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP) and to maintain existing service levels across all operational areas.

A comprehensive risk assessment was prepared as part of the decision making process leading to the purchase of 828 Pacific Highway (refer to **Attachment 2**). This risk assessment matrix was subsequently included in the Capital Expenditure Review (CER) for the project.

## FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Council's current LTFP includes asset sales to discharge the borrowing for the acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway in the following years:

### Table 3

Budget Year	2014/15	2015/16
(\$'000)	(\$'000)	(\$'000)
	13,422	16,387

In accordance with the Division of Local Government's (the Division) Capital Expenditure Guidelines, December 2010 (Guidelines) Council prepared CER for the acquisition of 828 Pacific Highway. On 28 September 2012, the Division advised that Council had met its capital expenditure criteria. The CER was based on asset sales as set out in Table 3 above.

It is now estimated that the sale of these assets will not occur in the timeframe originally envisaged. The Long Term Financial Plan has been adjusted to defer the sale of assets for the period of 12 month, as shown in the following Table 4 below:

### Table 4

	Original ' <b>\$00</b> 0		Revised '\$000	Change '\$000
2014/15		\$12311		-\$12311
2015/16		\$15720	\$13422	-\$2298
2016/17			\$1638;	\$16387
TOTAL		\$28031	\$29809	\$1778

The delay on assets sales means that the borrowings obtained to finance the building will be delayed in their repayment for a further year. This will have an extra interest cost of approximately \$1.77m as shown above. Totals sales required have been recalculated to preserve the principle that the purchase of the property will have no impact on other Council programs and services. This requires that the future surpluses from the project beyond the asset sales period remain the same. Sales will need to increase by an amount equivalent to the extra interest. It is considered that this revised sales value totalling \$29.8m is achievable given present valuations of the properties and improvement in market value due to later sale.

A revised Financial Analysis of the projects is attached to this report (Confidential **Attachment 3**)

With the lead time of reclassification and/or rezoning as required being in the order of 12-18 months, it is imperative that Council commences the statutory processes to enable disposal immediately.

## SOCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Council's *Community Strategic Plan 2030*, recognises the community's vision for Ku-ringgai as a place with infrastructure and facilities that accommodate the needs of the community. The Plan further emphasises the desire for an adopted program for the implementation of new facilities, identified funding sources and a program to maintain Council's assets at a sustainable standard.

Numerous reports have been submitted to Council advising on the substandard condition of Chambers accommodation and investigation of potential property purchases to provide adequate and improved staff accommodation.

The relocation of Council's administration functions is identified and (part) funded in the 2011-2012 capital works budget, discussed in the General Manager's introduction to the *Delivery Program 2012-15* and *Operational Plan 2011-12*, and was specifically raised as an issue during the recent DLG Better Practice Review.

The benefits of improved accommodation extend to Councillors, staff and the community. Whilst the chance to Masterplan the entire Chambers site provides a range of opportunities to determine the types of services and spatial requirements to meet Council's current and long term needs.

### **ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS**

The subject building is an existing office building and the proposed acquisition and the relocation of Council staff will not have any significant adverse environmental impacts.

## **COMMUNITY CONSULTATION**

Community consultation is an inherent part of the reclassification and rezoning processes. Statutory consultation will be carried out as required.

There will also be the need for separate ongoing consultation with existing long standing Council tenants in a number of instances.

### INTERNAL CONSULTATION

The GMD and Councillors have been briefed on this process throughout.

### SUMMARY

Council owned land at 828 Pacific Highway, Gordon. The land was however encumbered by a ground lease with an expiry date of 25 August 2090. Council sought to acquire the building and therefore extinguish the ground lease and regain its freehold interest in the property. On 4 December 2012, Council settled on the purchase of 828 Pacific Highway after several years of negotiations. The acquisition was made by Council on the basis it would be fully funded from asset sales.

With the lead time of reclassification and/or rezoning as required being in the order of 12-18 months, it is imperative that Council commences the statutory processes to enable disposal immediately.

### **RECOMMENDATION:**

A. That a Planning Proposal be prepared, in accordance with section 55 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979, to reclassify and/or rezone the sites in the table below from Community land to Operational land either via an amendment the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (KPSO), draft Ku-ring-gai Principal Local Environmental Plan 2013 (if gazetted in the interim) or the Ku-ring-gai Local Centres LEP (2012) as appropriate:

Site	Property Address	Relevant Plan	Planning Action
1.	818 Pacific Highway, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
2.	2-4 Moree Street, Gordon	KLEP (Local centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
3.	Culworth Avenue Car Park, Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
4.	2A Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
5.	4 Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
6.	19 Hughes Place, East Lindfield	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
7.	62 Pacific Highway, Roseville	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
8.	27 Garrick Road, St Ives	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land and Rezone R2 Low Density Residential.
9.	9 Eric Street, Wahroonga	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land and subdivide for sale as two lots
10.	56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal for reclassification and rezoning to R2 Low Density Residential.
11.	97 Babbage Road, Roseville	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land and rezone to R2 Low Density Residential.
12.	136A Morris Avenue/Junction Lane, Wahroonga	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land and rezone to R2 Low Density Residential.
13.	Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road)	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
14.	57 Merrivale Road, Pymble	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
15.	6A Peace Avenue, Pymble	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
16.	77A Bradfield Road, West Lindfield	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
17.	17 Marian Street, Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
18.	1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
19.	1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres) 2012	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land

- B. That Council undertake a public hearing under the provisions of the *Local Government Act, 1993* for the proposed reclassification of the sites in Table 1 from Community land to Operational land.
- C. That where relevant, Council formally seeks to discharge all interests for the sites listed in Table 1.
- D. That the Planning Proposal(s) be submitted to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure for a Gateway Determination in accordance with Section 56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.

- E. That upon receipt of a Gateway Determination(s), the exhibition and consultation process is carried out in accordance with the requirements of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979* and with the Gateway Determination requirements.
- F. That a report be brought back to Council at the end of the exhibition and public hearing processes.
- G. That formal road closure application for the following sites be submitted to the Crown Lands Division, if required:
  - Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road) Being Closed Road;
- H. That upon issuance of the Certificates of Title from the Crown Lands Division the following land is classified as Operational Land:
  - Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road) Being Closed Road;
- That, the General Manager be authorised to submitted a development application for subdivision of the lot into two building lots for the land known as 9 Eric Street, Wahroonga Being Lot 1 DP662194.

Deborah Silva Manager Integ Assets	rated Pla	nning, Property &	Andrew W <b>Director S</b>	atson <b>trategy &amp; Environment</b>
Attachments:	A1 A2 <u>View</u> A3	Council report of 20 M Risk Assessment Financial analysis	larch 2012	Confidential 2013/094292 Confidential

## **APPENDIX 2**

**Resolution of the Council Meeting** 

Council resolved at the Ordinary Meeting held on 30 April 2013 as follows:

## **Resolved:**

(Moved: Councillors Anderson/Fornari-Orsmond)

A. That a Planning Proposal be prepared, in accordance with section 55 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979, to reclassify and/or rezone the sites in the table below from Community land to Operational land either via an amendment the Ku-ring-gai Planning Scheme Ordinance (KPSO), draft

Ku-ring-gai Principal Local Environmental Plan 2013 (if gazetted in the interim) or the Kuring-gai Local Centres LEP (2012) as appropriate:

Site	Property Address	Relevant Plan	Planning Action
1.	818 Pacific Highway, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
		2012	from Community land to Operational land
2.	2-4 Moree Street, Gordon	KLEP (Local centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
		2012	from Community land to Operational land
3.	Culworth Avenue Car Park, Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
			from Community land to Operational land
4.	2A Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
-		2012	from Community land to Operational land
5.	4 Park Avenue, Gordon	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
6.	40 Llushee Diese Feet Lindfield	2012 KPSO	from Community land to Operational land
б.	19 Hughes Place, East Lindfield	KPSU	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community land to Operational land
7.	62 Pacific Highway, Roseville	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
1.	62 Facilic Highway, Roseville	2012	from Community land to Operational land
8.	27 Garrick Road, St Ives	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
0.	27 Gamer Road, St Wes	KI 50	from Community land to Operational land
			and Rezone R2 Low Density Residential
9.	9 Eric Street, Wahroonga	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
0.		14 00	from Community land to Operational land
			and subdivide for sale as two lots
10.	56-58 Koola Avenue, East Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal for
			reclassification and rezoning to R2 Low
			Density Residential
11.	97 Babbage Road, Roseville	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
			from Community land to Operational land
			and rezone to R2 Low Density Residential
12.	136A Morris Avenue/Junction	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
	Lane, Wahroonga		from Community land to Operational land
			and rezone to R2 Low Density Residential
13.	Edith Street, Pymble (Between	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
	74/76 Bannockburn Road)	1/200	from Community land to Operational land
14.	57 Merrivale Road, Pymble	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
15.	64 Deces Avenue Dymble	KPSO	from Community land to Operational land Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
15.	6A Peace Avenue, Pymble	KPSU	from Community land to Operational land
16.	77A Bradfield Road, West	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
10.	Lindfield		from Community land to Operational land
17.	17 Marian Street, Killara	KPSO	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
			from Community land to Operational land
18.	1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
		2012	from Community land to Operational land
19.	1186 Pacific Highway, Pymble	KLEP (Local Centres)	Initiate Planning Proposal to reclassify
		2012	from Community land to Operational land

B. That Council undertake a public hearing under the provisions of the *Local Government Act*, *1993* for the proposed reclassification of the sites in Table 1 from Community land to Operational land.

- C. That where relevant, Council formally seeks to discharge all interests for the sites listed in Table 1.
- D. That the Planning Proposal(s) be submitted to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure for a Gateway Determination in accordance with Section 56 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.
- E. That upon receipt of a Gateway Determination(s), the exhibition and consultation process is carried out in accordance with the requirements of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979* and with the Gateway Determination requirements.
- F. That a report be brought back to Council at the end of the exhibition and public hearing processes.
- G. That formal road closure application for the following sites be submitted to the Crown Lands Division, if required:
  - Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road) Being Closed Road;
- H. That, upon issuance of the Certificates of Title from the Crown Lands Division the following land is classified as Operational Land:
  - Edith Street, Pymble (Between 74/76 Bannockburn Road) Being Closed Road;
- I. That, the General Manager be authorised to submitted a development application for subdivision of the lot into two building lots for the land known as 9 Eric Street, Wahroonga Being Lot 1 DP662194.

For the Resolution:	The Mayor, Councillor E Malicki, Councillors McDonald, Pettett, Fornari-Orsmond, Anderson and Ossip
Against the Resolution:	Councillors Szatow, Armstrong, Citer and Berlioz

## **APPENDIX 3**

## **Title Searches:**

- 27 Garrick Road St Ives
- Part 56-58 Koola Ave East Lindfield
- 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase
- 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga

## **APPENDIX 4**

## **Supplementary Exhibition Material**

- 27 Garrick Road St Ives
- Part 56-58 Koola Ave East Lindfield
- 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase
- 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga

## **Requirements of LEP Practice Note PN 09-003:**

# Classification and reclassification of public land through a Local Environmental Plan - Checklist

# Planning Proposal to reclassify from Community Land to Operational Land the properties known as:

- 27 Garrick Road St lves
- Part 56-58 Koola Avenue East Killara
- 97 Babbage Road Roseville Chase
- 136A Morris Avenue / Junction Lane Wahroonga

# LEP Practice Note PN 09-003: Classification and reclassification of public land through a Local Environmental Plan

### Why is the Draft LEP being prepared?

This information is found in the Council Report dated 30 April 2013 and in the Planning Proposal.

### The current and proposed classification of the land

☑ This information is found in the Planning Proposal and the Council Report dated 30 April 2013.

### The strategic reasons for the reclassification

☑ This information is found in the Council Report dated 30 April 2013 and in the Planning Proposal.

### Council's ownership of the land

☑ This is confirmed in the Council Report dated 26 June 2012 and the A3 fold-out table entitled Reclassification Sites.

### The nature of Council's interest in the land

☑ This is within the A3 fold-out table entitled Reclassification Sites.

### How and when Council's interest in the land was acquired

☑ This is within the A3 fold-out table entitled Reclassification Sites.

### Any agreements over the land and the details thereof

☑ Any such information is included in the Planning Proposal.

### Prospective change in land valuation

☑ INSERT INFORMATION AT EXHIBITION STAGE

### Asset Management objectives

☑ This information is included in the Council Report dated 30 April 2013.

### Is there any agreement to sell or lease the land?

☑ There is no agreement to sell or lease the land. Any future decision to deal in the land following reclassification would require a further report and formal resolution of Council.

### Other relevant matters

☑ Please refer to the Planning Proposal.

### Attach a copy of Practice Note PN 09-003

☑ See next pages overleaf.



## LEP practice note

STANDARD INSTRUMENT FOR LEPS

Note	PN 09-003
Date	12 June 2009
Related	Supersedes (re)classification advice in Best Practice Guideline (1997)

## Classification and reclassification of public land through a local environmental plan

The purpose of this practice note is to update (and supersede) previous guidance on the process to classify or reclassify public land through a local environmental plan including a principal plan in accordance with the Standard Instrument.

#### Introduction

'Public land' is any land (including a public reserve) vested in, or under the control of, council. Exceptions include roads, land to which the *Crown* Lands Act 1989 applies, a common, or land to which the *Trustees of Schools of Arts Enabling* Act 1902 applies.

'Community' land is generally open to the public, for example, parks, reserves or sports grounds. 'Operational' land may be used for other purposes, for example, as works depots or garages, or held by council as a temporary asset.

'Classification' of public land refers to the process when this land is first acquired and first classified as either 'operational' land or 'community' land. 'Reclassification' of public land refers to the process of changing the classification of 'operational' land to 'community' land or from 'community' land to 'operational' land.

#### How is public land classified or reclassified?

Depending on circumstances, this is undertaken by either:

- resolution of council under section 31, 32 or 33 of the Local Government Act 1993 (LG Act) [through section 27(2)], or
- a local environmental plan (LEP) under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act) [through section 27(1) of the LG Act].

In both cases, it is not possible for councils to delegate their decision to classify or reclassify public land [section 377(1) of the LG Act]. Councils are encouraged to classify or reclassify land through the LG Act wherever circumstances conform to sections 31, 32 or 33 of the LG Act.

The remaining parts of this practice note identify the key areas councils must consider when proposing to classify or reclassify public land by means of a local environmental plan (LEP) under the second option.

This practice note supersedes the sections relating to classification and reclassification in *LEPs and council land*, Best Practice Guideline (Department of Urban Affairs and Planning 1997).

#### Procedure under the EP&A Act

Where classification or reclassification is proposed through an LEP, council is advised to include the proposal as early as possible in the draft LEP or planning proposal. If the public land to be classified or reclassified is not owned by council, landowner's consent is required prior to either section 54 or section 56 of the EP&A Act (when the Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act applies).<sup>1</sup>

The proposal would then form part of the material presented through either section 54 or section 56 of the EP&A Act (when the Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act applies).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> In relation to the Part 3 amendment, council should also check the changes to the EP&A Act and Regulation once these commence.

To assist councils, the steps in preparing material either as a draft LEP or planning proposal are summarised in Attachment 1. Column 1 of Attachment 1 sets out the requirements in accordance with the EP&A Act prior to the Part 3 amendment commencing. Column 2 of the attachment sets out the requirements after the Part 3 amendment commences. In relation to the Part 3 amendment, council should also check the savings and transitional arrangements under the EP&A Act, once these commence.

Where land is proposed to be reserved for a public purpose such as provision of public services and facilities, section 117 Direction 6.2—Reserving Land for Public Purposes applies. The Direction also sets out requirements when a reservation of public land for such purposes is no longer required.

A summary of relevant matters that need to be available at the time the planning proposal is first forwarded are listed in Attachment 2 under 'Exhibition'. Other matters for exhibition and later stages are listed separately in that attachment.

#### Provisions in the Standard Instrument

The following Standard Instrument provisions are relevant to the classification and reclassification of public land.

## Clause 5.2—Classification and reclassification of public land

The purpose of this clause is to enable councils to classify or reclassify public land identified in Schedule 4 of the Standard Instrument. Only public land to be classified or reclassified by publication on the NSW legislation website of that principal LEP is to be identified in the schedule. Schedule 4 must not contain a reference to any land already classified or reclassified.

#### Part 1 Schedule 4—change to 'operational' land, no interest changes

Land is identified in Part 1 of Schedule 4 where the trusts, estates, interests, dedications, conditions, restrictions or covenants over the land are to remain after reclassification to 'operational land', i.e. where no interests will change.

#### Part 2 Schedule 4—change to 'operational' land and an interest will change

Land is identified in Part 2 of Schedule 4 where the land is to be classified or reclassified as 'operational land' and some of the trusts, estates, interests, dedications, conditions, restrictions, or covenants over the land remain. The interests to remain are identified in column 3 of this part of the schedule.

Part 3 Schedule 4—change to 'community' land Land proposed to be classified or reclassified as 'community land' through the LEP is identified in Part 3 of the schedule. Department of Planning I practice note PN 09-003

Where there is no land to be classified or reclassified through the LEP, the clause remains with the schedule empty.

#### General requirements for exhibition

Public exhibition of the LEP occurs after certification of the LEP (in accordance with section 66 of the EP&A Act). Public exhibition of a planning proposal may occur in accordance with section 57(2) (when the Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act commences). To assist the public in understanding an exhibited draft LEP or planning proposal to classify or reclassify land, requirements are summarised in Attachment 2.

A copy of council's response to these requirements together with a copy of this practice note is to be part of material displayed during public exhibition of an LEP or planning proposal to reclassify or classify public land.

#### **Public hearing**

A public hearing must be held when 'community land' is proposed to be reclassified as 'operational land'.

To ensure council and the community have sufficient time to consider relevant matters associated with the proposed change, the public hearing is held after the close of the exhibition period under section 68 of the EP&A Act (section 29 of the LG Act) for an LEP and in accordance with section 57(6) (when the Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act commences).

Public hearing provisions are set out in the EP&A Regulation (clause 14) and public notice of a hearing must be sent or published at least 21 days before the start of the public hearing.

The independence of the person chairing the public hearing and requirements relating to the preparation and inspection of reports from the hearing are specified in section 47G of the LG Act.

#### Further information

A copy of this practice note, Standard Instrument, and other specific practice notes and planning circulars on using the Standard Instrument, can be accessed on the Department's website http://www.planning.nsw.gov.au/lep/index.asp

#### Authorised by:

Sam Haddad, Director-General

#### List of attachments:

1. Main steps (in sequence) for classifying and reclassifying public land under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

 General requirements for classification or reclassification of land through local environmental plans and planning proposals

#### Attachment

# Attachment 1. Main steps (in sequence) for classifying and reclassifying public land under the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979*

Deminements arise to commence whether page Device	Demuirements offer commencement of the 2000 De 1 C
Requirements prior to commencement of the 2008 Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act	Requirements after commencement of the 2008 Part 3 amendment to the EP&A Act when it applies to a proposal
Council notifies the Department of a decision to prepare a draft LEP including a proposal to classify or reclassify public land (section 54 of the EP&A Act).	A planning proposal is forwarded by council to the Minister (new section 56 of the EP&A Act), including a proposal to classify or reclassify public land.
This notification is accompanied by an appropriate level of information including for the following: <ul> <li>a justification for the proposal</li> <li>reasons why council acquired an interest</li> <li>details that would also accompany a plan at exhibition stage (see Attachment 2)</li> <li>any proposal to extinguish or retain other interests in the land through the reclassification</li> <li>a justification (explanation as to why such interests are being extinguished</li> <li>any preposal associated with the classification/ reclassification</li> <li>any rezoning associated with the classification/ reclassification</li> <li>any preliminary comments by a relevant government agency, including agency's consent where land is vested or held by an agency other than council</li> <li>consideration of any relevant directions e.g. section 117</li> <li>Direction 6.2—Reserving Land for Public Purposes, where appropriate.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>This proposal contains an appropriate level of information including for the following: <ul> <li>a justification for the planning proposal</li> <li>reassons why council acquired an interest</li> <li>details that would also accompany a plan at exhibition stage (see Attachment 2)</li> <li>any proposal to extinguish or retain other interests in the land through the reclassification</li> <li>a justification (explanation as to why such interests are being extinguished</li> <li>any rezoning associated with the classification/ reclassification</li> <li>any reliminary comments by a relevant government agency, including an agency in which the land is vested or held</li> <li>consideration of any relevant directions, e.g. section 117 Direction 6.2—Reserving Land for Public Purposes, where appropriate.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Consultation with relevant public agencies and other stakeholders (section 62 of the EP&A Act).	See below.
After consultation, council submits a draft LEP to the Department and, subject to the issue of a section 65 certificate, the draft LEP is exhibited for a minimum of 28 days and the public invited to provide written submissions to the exhibited LEP within the exhibition period.	Following review, at the gateway, if the planning proposal is to proceed, requirements for the various stages of the proposal, including consultation requirements, will be provided to council (new section 56(1), 56(2) of the EP&A Act).
Where a draft LEP includes reclassification of 'community' land to 'operational' land, council holds a public hearing into the proposal in accordance with section 68 of the EP&A Act (section 29 of the Local Government Act). *	Where a planning proposal includes reclassification of 'community' land to 'operational' land, council holds a public hearing into the proposal in accordance with new section 57(6) of the EP&A Act.*
Such a hearing follows the requirements of clause 14 of the EP&A Regulation including that a notice of the details for the hearing must be published in a local newspaper and sent to any person requesting a hearing a minimum of 21 days prior to the hearing.	Such a hearing follows the requirements of clause 14 of the EP&A Regulation including that a notice of the details for the hearing must be published in a local newspaper and sent to any person requesting a hearing a minimum of 21 days prior to the hearing.
Where it is considered appropriate, the draft LEP is submitted to the Director-General together with details of all submissions and the report of the public hearing, together with a statement of other matters set out in section 68 of the EP&A Act.	Consultation for a planning proposal under new section 57 of the EP&A Act is completed when council has considered any submissions made concerning the proposed instrument and the report of any public hearing.
	Where the planning proposal is to proceed, the Director-General makes arrangements for the drafting of the LEP to give effect to the final proposal (new section 59 of the EP&A Act).
The Director-General furnishes a report to the Minister if the Director-General is satisfied that the draft LEP has been prepared in accordance with any applicable standard instrument under section 33A (section 69 of the EP&A Act).	
The Minister determines whether to make the LEP under section 70 of the EP&A Act. **	The Minister (or Minister's delegate) determines whether to make the LEP under new section 59 of the EP&A Act. **

Notes: Where a proposal includes a classification of 'operational' land to 'community' land, a public hearing is not generally required. Where a reclassification proposes to extinguish other interests in the land, the approval of the Governor is required in accordance with section 30 of the LG Act.

#### Attachment

## Attachment 2. General requirements for classification or reclassification of land through local environmental plans and planning proposals

#### Exhibition

When exhibiting a planning proposal or draft LEP to classify or reclassify public land, council must provide a written statement including the following:

- the reasons why the draft LEP or planning proposal is being prepared including the planning merits of the proposal, e.g. the findings of a centres' strategy, council's intention to dispose of the land, provision of open space in a town centre
- the current and proposed classification of the land
- the reasons for the reclassification including how this relates to council's strategic framework, council's proposed future use of the land, proposed zones, site specific requirements, e.g. heritage controls, anticipated physical or operational changes resulting from the reclassification
- council's ownership of the land, if this applies
  the nature of council's interest in the land, e.g.
- council has a 50 year lease over the site
- how and when the interest was first acquired, e.g. the land was purchased in 20XX through section 94
- the reasons council acquired an interest in the land, e.g. for the extension of an existing park; council was given responsibility for the land by a State agency
- any agreements over the land together with their duration, terms, controls, agreement to dispose of the land, e.g. whether any aspect of the draft LEP or planning proposal formed part of the agreement to dispose of the land and any terms of any such agreement
- an indication, as a minimum, of the magnitude of any financial gain or loss from the reclassification and of the type(s) of benefit that could arise e.g. council could indicate the magnitude of value added to the land based on comparable sites such as the land is currently valued at \$1500 per square metre, nearby land zoned for business development is valued at between \$2000 and \$5000 per square metre
- the asset management objectives being pursued, the manner in which they will be achieved and the type of benefits the council wants, i.e. without necessarily providing details of any possible financial arrangements, how the council may or will benefit financially
- whether there has been an agreement for the sale or lease of the land; the basic details of any such agreement and, if relevant, when council intends to realise its asset, either

immediately after rezoning/reclassification or at a later time

- Relevant matters required in plan making under the EP&A Act
- A copy of this practice note must be included in the exhibition material to assist the community in identifying information requirements. Council staff may wish to identify the column in Attachment 1 that applies.

#### Post-exhibition

Once a decision has been made regarding whether the draft LEP or planning proposal proceeds, everyone who made a written submission must be notified in writing of the decision.

Written notification must occur within 14 days of the decision and needs to clearly identify the reasons for council's decision. An explanation must be included of how issues raised in submissions were addressed including the reasons for council's decision.

The final report after exhibition to either the Director-General or the Minister should include:

- a brief summary of council's interest in the land
- issues raised in any relevant submissions
- the dates of the exhibition and the hearing
- an explanation of how issues raised were addressed or resolved.

#### Additional matters to be addressed when the Governor's approval is required

The Governor's approval is required for the extinguishment of public reserve status and other interests in land which a council proposes to reclassify from 'community' to 'operational' status under the LG Act.

Council must provide sufficient information in accordance with this practice note to inform the Minister of any public reserve and/or other third party property interests (e.g. trust, covenant, easement) that are proposed to be extinguished upon the making of such a draft LEP or planning proposal.

#### Important note

This note does not constitute legal advice. Users are advised to seek professional advice and refer to the relevant legislation as necessary, before taking action in relation to any matters covered by this note

© 2009 New South Wales Government through the Department of Planning www.planning.nsw.gov.au DOP 09\_004

Disclaimer: While every reasonable effort has been made to ensure that this document is correct at the time of publication, the State of New South Wales, its agencies and employees, disclaim any and all liability to any person in respect of anything or the consequences of anything done or omitted to be done in reliance upon the whole or any part of this document.